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Sugarcane can
make a difference

Sugarcane refers to any of six to 37 species (depending on which taxonomic
system is used) of tall perennial grasses of the genus Saccharum. Native to
the warm temperate to tropical regions of South Asia, they have stout, jointed,
fibrous stalks that are rich in sugar, and measure six to 19 feet tall. All sugarcane
species inter breed, and the major commercial cultivators are complex hybrids.

Sugarcane products include table sugar, molasses, rum, bagasse and ethanal.

Sugarcane is indigenous to tropical South Asia and Southeast Asia.
Different species likely originated in different locations, with S. barberi

originating in India and S. edule and 8. officinarum coming from New
Guinea. Crystallized sugar was reported 5,000 years ago in the Indus
Valley Civilisation, located in modern-day Pakistan and North India.

Around the eighth century A.D., Arab traders introduced sugar from
South Asia to the other parts of the Abbasid Caliphate in Mediterranean,
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Mesopotamia, Egypt, North Africa, and Andalusia. By
the 10th century, sources state, there was no village
in Mesopotamia that did not grow sugarcane. It was
among the early crops brought to the Americas by
the Andalusians from their fields in the Canary Islands,
and the Portuguese.

Boiling houses in the 17th through 19th centuries converted
sugarcane juice into raw sugar. These houses were
attached to sugar plantations in the western colonies.
Slaves often ran the boiling process, under very poor
conditions. Made of cut stone, rectangular boxes of brick
or stone served as furnaces, with an opening at the bottom
to stoke the fire and remove ashes. At the top of each
furnace were up to seven copper kettles or boilers, each
one smaller and hotter than the previous one. The cane
juice began in the largest kettle. The juice was then heated
and lime added to remove impurities. The juice was

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 | 03

kﬁ'

skimmed, and then channelled to successively smaller
kettles. The last kettle, the "teache”, was where the cane
juice became syrup. The next step was a cooling trough,
where the sugar crystals hardened around a sticky core
of molasses. This raw sugar was then shovelled from the
cooling trough into hogsheads (wooden barrels), and from
there into the curing house.

Eventually the same process was modified and made
more energy efficient leading to what is the modern day
sugarcane processing facility. Today's sugarcane
processing facility specialises not only in sugar production
but is also an industrial scale producer of ethanol, bio
fertiliser, renewable energy and bio plastics. All these
products, how they are produced and how they are utilized
define today's modern day sugarcane factory and show
how sugarcane can make a difference in our life.




Vision

Foousing on customers and shareholders sabisfaction with challenging spint and flesabdity, we arg dedicated
1o have eminent position in manufacturing and supphing quality white refined sugar and allied products and
Tneretny play & wtal rohe in e S0cial SconNoImec: Cenaiimianl of the Country

Mission

Preamble

We the management of Enterprise, have set forth cur belief as 1o the purpose for which the Company is
estabishad and tha principles undar whech i should operate.

We plaedge our efforts to the accomplishment of the purpose within the agreed principlas,

Basic Purpose

The basic purpose of Enterprise i to perpatuate as a Public Limited Company engaged in manufaciunng and
rmarkieting white refined cane sugar, food products, sugar by-products and other products whensin managenment
or sporsors have expartie, 0 addiion we presen 10 assume a Badership posfion in redated industry reganding
quiality of thie product, cost alfectneness, lurmoear and tachinoiogy.

Business Strategy & Goal

Mehran Sugar Mills Limited & a growth onented sugar company, We sirive 1o attain a leadership role in the
field of sugar manufactuning as wall as inesting in projects which add value 10 sugarcane processng. Wi aim
1o increase our production capacity on a consistent basis as well a5 appling lalest technology 1o attain
rmaximum productiaty, Our ultimate goal 15 10 ensure consistent refums to cur shareholders and croate value.




Risks / Challenges associated with Sugar Industry

Each business has its peculiar risks and

Accordingly, we have tried to highlight risks and

Ehgllanges which parlicularly affect the sugar
Ngss,

. Sugar price fluctuation
Sugar prices like most commodities primarily
dhepand on supply and demand. Intemational

prices
also play an important role in determining kocal
prices. In addition, tha cost of production especially
cane affects sugar prices as well. i has been
noted that inemational and domestc sugar prices
heave contimued 10 reman exinamaly volatile which
doesn't allow one 1o forecast future revenus
streams. Whils sugar production is a seasonal
oparation for approximately 120 days, sales
continue throughout the vear, thus holding imentony
i5 a risk, espacially in a high inlerast rata
environment.

. Plant efficiency du.ri.ng the season
Proper masmtenancs ihe off-season enables
the plant ta mun the season. Since

the season is for a limited duration, a ma
breakdown could affect financial results for t
entire year,

. Cyclical nature of sugarcane crop

in the size of the sugarcane crop can have
m an the financial results of a company.
SUJArcane crop sizes vary depending on the
weather, waler avalability and prcing of competitve
Crops. sugarcans diseass can have a detrimental
affect on both farmer and factory yields,

. Correlation between Cane and Sugar prices

Cana prices have a minimum support price and
are deterrmined through a fres market rmachanism.
Whareas sugar prices though supposedly frea
market are mel with resistance when prices ©o-
relate with cane prices.

. Molasses price fluctuation

Prica primarhy d o supply and dermand.

Bulk of Molasses is now bought by ethanc
distilleries as export of Molasses is No more a
leasible opton in view of duty structura. Prices
ramain volatile and have swung by as much as
100 percant in some financal years. Si

molasses

10.

11.

revenue i an imporant defesminant of our cash
flcrer, this fuctuation does not aliow us o forecast
UM MEnanLe STrem

Fluctuating interest rates

In order to curty infiatson, State Bank of Pakistan

intarvenss and mvises inlersst rales which
affect the cost of doing business. A sudden surge
in borrowing rates could adversely impact the
Company's financials,

Law and Order

Sugar mills are hpicaly located in rural ansas which
arg mone susceptible to Law and Order situation.

Inflation

Infiation affects the business due to unprecadiented
cost increasa. 1 akso eouces the consumer buring
[P,

Foreign Exchange Risk

Devaluation of local curmancy increasas cost of
impors thereby INCreasing our processing cost.

Cane crop vs Crushing Capacities

Iry e kst bt cecackss the nduestry has corssionthy
ncreased its sugarcane crushing capacities without
cbjectivaly ensuring an increasa in the size of crop.
A major challenga going ahead is 10 ensure
increased sugancane cultivation 1o match erushing
capacity. However we feel that there is still an
uriahalad barnthwanon of catiess wathout Sirmilar
growth or a long term plan for increasing the cane
Crog.

Sugarcane Varieties

With the passage of time, the sucrose recovery
from traditional vadeties s reducing. The need of
the time i 10 bring new vanaties. with high sucrose
recovery 1o mitigate the reduction and improve our
overal sugar production, Therefore, research and
developmaent need 10 be gven prefermed attention
for continuous improvemeant, This will give long
term susiamabity to the ndustry. Curmanily thesa
varigties are being sown without any formal
altestation from recognized research instibules
wihich is also a sk,
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Mehran has continued to pay
dividend since last 12 quarters

- We have paid 50% dividend
~in 2010-11




Vanous commtteas have Deasn formed 1o ook attar
the operaticnal and fnancal matters of e Commpsay,
A brief descrption of the composition and their related
tasks ang as 10Bows:

Executive Committee

The Commitles meals to descwss and coordinate
vanous operational actvities of the Comgpany. Chiaf
Executiee Oificer of the Cormpany is the Chairman of
the Cormmmities whils Chief Operating (

Financial Officer, Rasidant Director, Director Cana
Develapment arg the mambers of tha Commeltes,

Human Resource Development Committes

Tha Human Resource Development Comimettes is

for staff annual appraisal and compensation,
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The Committes comprses of Chied Exbc
Chial Operating Officer, Cheal Financial
Hesident Direcior,

Information Technology Committea

Tha Comrmittes msats 10 decide adaptation of latest
mndyations in thea ed of Infoomaton Techaokgy. It
comprises of Chisl Operating Officer, Chiel Financial
Cifficer and banager [T,

Audit Committes

It & a statutory Comemit ] 5 [EF IeUEremeEnis
of Coda of Corporate | R it &5 responsble 10
ensura that all functions of the Company oparalions
are regularly audited and their reports are revieswed
DTy Policy

Chairman and two other Direciors




In 2010-11 Mehran generated |

highest production, sales and -
profits




Corporate History

1965
Tha Lomaany is ncorparatod as
a public Emited compéany.

1978
Steady ne-angneering increased
crushing canmcty too3,500 TCO,

1994

The Company Crosses the
R, 2.0 Bllon 530S mibisbond,

2011

Hiscond Feghist Sugar Produciion,
turnover gnd profits.

1568

Shares of tha Company ans ksted
an the Karachi Stock Exchanga.

1983

Racognizad by the Karachi Siock
Exchangs &5 ona of the Top 25
Companies for tha first ima,

1998
Tha Company is awanded 1S
9002 - OMS Gertifcaton.

2007

Thea joant venture digtillery-Uinicol
Limnitad commancnd cormmiarcial
proccion.

1568

Fial Comymnencas: inal procuchion

Wil @ ) ety ol 1,500
TCDO. G ! S procumd om
W Lﬁm

1986

Again selected by the Karachi
Slock Exchanga for its Top 25
Company Award.

2001
Company ouchad bilkon Fupsaes

2010

The Company crogses the
Rs. 4.0 Blion sues miesions,
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Board of Directors

From left to right
Mr. Muhammad kbl hir, Mohammed Kasim Hasham Mr, Farooq Hassan
Deractor Sales Charman Director
Mr. Ahmed Ebeahim Hasham Mr, Mohammed Hugssn Hasham
Derecton/Cheel Operating Officer Dhrector

Mr. Moharmmed Ebeahem Hasham | Me Khuntam Kasim
Daracion Chied Exacutive Officer Chrector




Company Information

Audit Commitiea

Kr. Mohammed Kasm Hasham,
Chaeman

Mir. Kiwrram Kasim,
Mamber

Mr. Farpoq Hassan
kdamber

Mr. Muhammad kgbal,
Secretary
Chéa! Financial OMicer &
Company Sacratany

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Aziz,
FCMA

Auditoes

Mss. Emist & Young Ford Phodas
Sacinl Hyder

Charterad Accountans

Infernal Auditors

h's. Shekha & Mufti

Charterad Accountants

Coost Auditors

Haroon Zakana & Company
iCharterad Accountants

Legal Adwvigor

Sayeed & Sayeed
Advocate & Legal Consuitants
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Bankers

MCB Bank Lirmited
Barik Attaiah Limited

Bark Al Habibs Limited

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Maazan Bark Limited

Regestared Office

Aciamipa House, Bih Floor,
L1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi
Tk 021) 324171314
Fac|021) 32418477

Mills

Tando Adam Road, Defl. Tando Allshyer.
Tebil22) 3800858, XER0407, 3891084
Fax:{022) 3890568
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Sugarcane can make
a difference by providing
Bio-Fertilizer
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Shareholders Information / Investor Relations

Share Reqistrar Corporate Support Senices
1 0, Al Ameera Cenire
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Date of Board of Dineciors meeting {Tentativa) 1st Ctr Haif Year ard Ctr Annual

ao2m2 20/05/2012 25072012 oeM12/2012

2011 2010 2008 2008 2007 2006
Murrer of Sriare fisand | Pasd-u) T MERD | 14293125 11,812.500 0,843 750 0843750 9843 750
Exnering per sham 1887 16 553 1483 583 EEY a11
Berstin, 1 wishues et s 731 WES MW 1786 1208 nH
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Market Capitalization (Rupeos in milkions)
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‘Enthesham-Ud-Din Muhammad lgbal Ahmed Ebrahim Hasham
Direcior CansaDeveloprment Director-Sales & Marketing Chief Operating Officer
Bachelor of Arig B.Com, C.AYRnalist} Bachalor of Aris [Economics and |H)
- Tufts Uniearsity, Mediond MA, LISA
Joined Mehran in 2004 Joined Mehran in 2003
e Joined Mahran in 2000
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Ethanol is also another good option for d
as well as to replace kerosene for domestic
some of the more common ones are for
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Corporate Profile

Date of Incorporation Facilities At The M5M Staff Colony
December 22, 1965
Housing
Date of Commencement of Business g2 Family Homes for Execulives, Officers. and Workers
March 19, 1965
Population of the Staff Colony
Start of Commercial Production 1.018
January 19065

Children at the Dawood Memorial School
Installed Capacity s62
7,000 Tons Cane Crushing Per Day

Tatal Land Area
118 Acms

Permanent Employees
343

Othar Facilities
B Mosque

B  Mobi: Dispensary

B Recreation Centres equipped with Indoor Games, TV, Videos, Dish Antennas and other faciities for Execulives,
Workers and Ladias

Cricket Ground, Tennis Court, Park and Rose Garden, School/ College Bus facility
Private Electric Generator for Uninterrupted Power Supply

Clean Water Supply with UV Fillers

Transport Facility for City & Adjoining Amas

Accomimadation for Oficers and Company Guests with all facilitios
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During the current year we were able to
add value in excess of Rs.1 billion



WEALTH GENERATED

el reneenue
Expenses

Wealth generated
WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

To Government
Sales Tax, Income Tax, Foad Coss

To Employees
Salaries, Benefits and Other refated cost

To Providers of capital
Mark-up on bomowed funds
Shareholders as Diadend Bonus shares

Retained with the business
Dapmaciation
Hatained pood

Statement of Value Added

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 | 23

2011 2010

(Rupees) (Rupees) %

4,596,296,142 4,025,770.523

3,550,637,297 3,256 542 401
1,045,658,845 100 769,228,122 100
298,149,637 239304007 31
173,522,656 1 137,798,215 18
133,757,171 73,800,473 10
82,543,560 75,039,372 10
216,300,731 148,838,845 20
79,567,941 7 47,901,533 [
282117881 27 195,384,512 25
357,685,822 44 243,286,045 31

1,045,658,845 100 780,228,122 100

Value addition and distribution during the year 2011 Rs. 1,045.66 million

@ Retained within the business 34%
@ GCovernment as taxes 28%
@ Financial, dividend and bonus shares 21%:

@& Employees as remuneration 17%
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.

Bagasse is a fibrous matter, a residue that remains after sugarcane is crushed to extract
juice. It is approximately 30% of the total cane crushed. bagasse can be used to make

pulp in manufacturing of paper products and building materials such as particle board
sheets.

Around 5 percant of paper production worldwide is being produced from bagasse, thus
reducing the damage to the global eco system due to blatant and illegal cutting of trees
in forests. It is now an essential ingredient for the production of pressed particle board,
acoustical tiles and other construction material. In recent years bagasse is also being
used by a large number of MDF (Medium-density fibre board) plants.
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Six years Review at a Glance
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Operational Trends
ugar produced - M. Tons B4.894 50,450 5,678 0,558 { et

F P LB RIS DL NN 'D]H- 1L 1033
hing day 1568 1 11

b, Toe: 5,186 ira $.760 151 1 27

Balance Sheet
share capita 172.95 14293  118.13
S ErVES G18.88 T840
Shareholders' equity 792.84 52241 3334 175.79 11841
| liabiities 47208  461.2 02,6 303, 4
1 lighdilies 1. 854 50 51,7 A8 10 13- A0 bt v [

| otal Equity & Liahilities 311952 1. 735 38 1 118 4f 1. 149

el s snis iuﬁ-ﬁ I.'{.i XA
Won cumant assels 22526 180.07 1 05 | i

H1 S5 1,805.47 A P 130, 0 ar.: 206,74 o, 20
lTotal assels 3Nes 1.,73538 111845 1,181 ; J

Financial Trends
Tumover 4 556 .30 25,7 2.0 ]
5 profi : BE1.40 {747 183 118 i
[TDA 625.82 142,83 5 138.89 1§

Eraling protd S OSSs) S09.61 KR .08 2771.410 A
a0 profit £ () 416.50 32113 245 60 &60.5 {11

258.04

Cash Flows Rupees in million

perating activitie 317.29 -
mEsling activit 306,42 129,79 55 Ja3.:
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2011 2010 2003 2008 2007 2006

Profitability Indicators
rosss profitl mang 12.65 11.78 1 I ]
Met profit Jir 7.02 5.01 53 1.5 3, B 3.53
perating profit - 40.00 ; 12 65 14.36 10,50 :
YeturT {otal assets 10.00 13.04 156.73 113

T margin 13.62 11 0.65

Capital Efficiency / Operating Performance

= i i
rd L ]

—-

| I i | HeLI e 1887 ] 14 AG 1 11
iredk-up vale per share (Fupess) 45,84 3 2875 17.86 12.03 3.3
CE aar W3 ral 2493 19 1 iR 1 T4
vidend yield 913 10,44 114 . |
vidend payout 96.78 12 40 19 R .

a0 M
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Financial gearing

2
J
&
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.
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R — E

Ligquidity measurement
Curment rat 087 : 1 0494 : 1 [ 1
Cuwick ratio/Acid test rat 0.19: 1 ' '

Value addiion Rupeas in million
208.00 230,00 11 B8 |

recal char 10 proviclers of fnan 133.76 6533 13,64 1504

| ¥ ] I F B 54 [ | V | [ 1. 1.61
business 357 .69 06, 71 2 B B2 51 12,22
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Six years Sugarcane trends Analysis

il Avg recovery % of Mehran vs [l Avg. recovery % of Sindh Cane Purchases (Rupees in milion)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2006 2007
B Actual Price vs ] Support Price Loan to Cane Growers (Rig

illlll ilII

B
=
L]
 —
2006 1007 2008 2009 300 20N 2008 2007 300 2008 2010
Cost of Cane as % of COGM Cost of Cane a5 % of Turnover
20087 008 2008 a0I0 . 2006 008 0 2000 2011
|
Trend Analysis of Quality cane (acres) | , e
70,000 3 == e 4 T il

GGG
50,000




Mehran made consistent and
prompt payments to the
growers. This year we have

paid Rs. 4.3 billion which was
highest in our history

Average recovery of Mehran
was 10.18% while National

average was 9.37%
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Bagasse can also be used as renawable power generation source. It is burmt in boilers to
produce steam, which can be converted into electricity through turbines. It s used to produce
steam / electricity necessary for sugar production process through internal generation, thus
reducing dependence on national grid. By efficient plant operations, bagasse can be saved
and thus used to produce and supply electricity to the grid. It is a cheaper, emvironmentally
friendly and a renewable source of electricity.




Chairman’s Review

Dear Shareholders,
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Our investment plan has helped us to save 13,402 M.Tons
bagasse and generated other income of Rs. 39.92 million
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behall of the Board, | am pleased 10 presan the
audited financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended September 30, 2011.

The Economy

Despite tremandous challenges on account of
unprecedented floods, volatile of prices and energy
oulages, our econonmy has perforoed reasonably. The
factors that contributed 10 economic recovery after
denastating floods includa significant growth in export
eamings and record remittances. These faciors have
mitigatad tha impact of tha higher oil impon bl and
sustained the build up in foreign exchange resenes.

GDP growth rate for the period under review stood af
2.4% s companad 10 a growth af 3.8% i tha prévious
vear, Pricr 10 the Roods, this rate was projected at 4.5%
for financial year 2010-11. However devastating floods
affected the growth momentum. Resultantly the
agrcullure sector growth was 1.2% as against the
targed of 3.8%, whereas senices secior grew by 4.1%
as against the target of 5.4%. Tha manutactuning sector
growth was also adversely affected due to reduction
i outpul of tediles and patroleunm products.

Curranily, the key challengas taced by our economy
are faling private investment, rising total debil, energy
dhaficat and crcular debis ssue, Tha S8P dacsion 10
reduce policy rale is expecied to increase demand for
private secior credit and increase in imastment may
help the productive capacity of the econcemy,

Industry Review

The announcement of Minimum Support Price on 20-
10-2010 well Besiore the start of the Grushing campagn
was considered a positive move on the part of the
Govemment. The announced pncs was 24 5% higher
as comparad 1o the previous year. This notified price
has nterestngly doubded dunng thea last hres years
from As.63/40 kgs in 2008 1o Rs.127/20 kgs in 2000
However, The eventual cans prices paid by sugar mills
wene on average between Fs 200/-40kgs 1o Rs 240/-
A0kgs due 1o a shortage of canaé as compansd 1o
crushing capadity.

One of the major reasons for high sugarcane prices
wias the bulksh naturs of local sugar prcas which
followed the internafional price trend, The London white
sugar marke! has increased from $330M0n in 2008 to
an average of 5 725/-ton in 2011.

The national sugar production durng 2010-11 was 4.2
million tones as against 3.2 milkon tones in 2009-10
shonng an morease of 31% over the prensous yaar,
Out of this, 2.6 milion tones 62% was produced in the
Pumjaby winila Sindh produced 1.3 mallicn tones 31%.
The remaining 300,000 Tons 7% was produced in
khyber Pakhtoonkimyea

To courter expeciad shortaga, mmpor of raw and refined
sugar was also alowed and duties were removed. Only
40,000 tones of raw sugar was imparted by the private
sacior afier which local prices fell Delcw the ntermational
markal and imports did nol reman viable foc iha
remaining part of the year. Thus for the remainder of
the year, sugar in Pakistan was chaaper than
memational impors even though there were no duties
o IO,

The increase in production allowed the couwntry 1o
maintain sufficient stocks as well as provide for the
annual corsumphicn of 4.2 milkon toms. Wb wens kall
with a lange camyover siock since the TCP had imported
500,000 torns from the infemnational market aarier in
the year and had been gradually off loading is stocks
duiring the vear In Septamber 2011 the sugar marke

realzad that a large quantity of camyover stocks would
be left and considering the naxt year was expecied 1o
be a bumper crop the market crashed. Prices of sugar
collapsed from an average of Rs 70~ kg 1o Rs 50V- kg
withinn & momth. Luckaly your Company had sold mios!
of itz sugar and came unscathed from this event



Operational Highlights

Se

Season

Duratio

Crushing-M: ms=

" Sucrose R k1
2 Sugar Prudmhnn—!ih‘[‘nna ;
| Molasses Frudwuun:ﬂ ng:

The year under reviaw marked a few noteworihy
achievaments for the Company. Mehran's cane crushing
as well as sugar produchon was the highest in ils
history. Our shame in national and provingial production
was 2% and 6.33% respactively. SUcross racovany
el down 1o 10.18% from 10,405 in the presious
year and can be attnbutsd 10 mtermmitten crushing
during the first 30 days of the campaign on account
af iImegular sugarcans supyHies.

Our avarage sugarcana procursmant prica was
Rs.212.50/0 kgs comparad 1o Rz, 190/40 kg for the
presan s waar depeching an incresss of 11.84%. Howewer
ihe procursment prRce was 6% hgher ihan tha
PRI Supor prce announced By he govermement
which was an excellent boost for our farmer in the
form of additional revanus. Our overall Bveraisa pnoa
Was comparativedy better than SULETOLINCRNG Mils Snce
the Ml has an ideal locaton and closa prooamity 1o
CLaAty Cane
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The Company continues 10 invest in BMHAE. During
the year uncer review, We have invested Fs.300 milion
as comparad to Hs 400 Mion in the presatus Season.,
Tha focus this year was on imgeoving our milling
operations and automating the process housa. Tha
work has been according to schedule despite
ribermupcnS cunng B rain based food whech Causad
havoc In the mill in Seplember.  Luckily the heawy
monsoon rams durng the month did nol cause
destruction at the factory, i however slowed the
process of work at sife.

The floods have played havoc in the field especially in
the districis of Tando Allahyar and Mirpuridas, Colton,
rice and other smaller crops have Deen severely hit,
Sugarcane being a water mtensive crop was abla to
withstand rh-u PrEssure o an axient nDwevar thia
standing water in the field will reduce both farm and
factory yeids. The rans have also detayed the crushing
season since damaged roads have made acoess 1o
the fiesds difficult and many fields are still inundated
with water
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Financial Highlights (Rupees in Thousand excopt EPS)

Turmower

Sales tax / Special excise duty/Federal excise duty

Gross profit

Profit before tax profit
After tax profit
Earnings per share

This COMDENT Was aDia 1o achisg necond fnan
tumnover and profits. Turmowver crossed Hs.4.5 billion
SNOWING an Increase of 14% companed 10 1he presous
vaar, The tolal sugar quaniity sold was 65 kower than
lmst vear however an improved selling price enablad
higher tumowver, Al the end of this penod 20,868 fons
Of SLgar rermsasned Sokd Dl un-ifted

Foloweng ans Ihe masons 1or fnpnoved profitability

High sucrose recovery of 10.18% which is 8.6% higher
than the natons BvVEraje

Incraasa n saling pncs of sugar and modesses whech

201011
4,596,296
241,258
581,396
416,497
322,857
18.67

200910
4,025.711
184,426
474779
321,129
241,986
13.99

B 14,0 ™ and 19,5 % hgher than last e

Sabes of 13,402 tons of bagasse which resufted in a
revanus of As 39,925 842 as comparad (o a revenus
of Fs. 6,662 87T from a lotal guantity of 2,008 tons
last yesar

Famning Devisson confinued 1o show batter msilts
SUpaAssn (LS DREMOUES Ywiar's oo of HE 24,5004 622
and recorded a profl of B5.32,154,120 prmanly due
E0 MIgNEr SUCERNCEAMNE DNCES

Considerable improvement in profit from Unecol Limied
wiich increasad from Hs. 1,848,200 o Hs 40,640,865
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Operational Highlights

Average Crushing per day (Mefric Tons sugar Produced (Metric Tons)

T o iy . .
ZUILIG LY ]

___ll'|;"'|:: 3
L] LIS £ LR

2008 2008 20000 2011

SUCrose Recovery (%) LCane Crushed (Metric Tons

2008 2009 2010

G667 638

496,873
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Company Performance at a Glance

TUrROVEr (Rupess in million) Pre-Tax profit / (loss) (Rupees in million)
2008 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 2006 2008 2000 2010 2011
Et}{l?
Resarves (Rupees in million) Capital Expenditure (Rupees i million)
H - I I I —Y I I
i == EN
2008 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011

Shareholders Equity iRupees in million) |

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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Prafit affer tax
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Contribution to Society

hehran abwarys ermasionsd playing sagnificant mls in tha
I'.|L Aesopiment of 1he Socety in :_:u:ﬂl‘mI and m 1he vy
af Tando .--.II.-1',-¢—r in parlicwlar. Corporate Social
Responsibdity = therefore considerad an inegral part
af our business, We believe in maintaining a trusting
rL4|.I|I"'_H'I-""Il:.- Wl Our CLESIOMENS, SMEoyess and Socaty
We are therafora, making a conscious effort 1o attend
10 1 objacthe, We hana sol ot 10ng e pan in thes
regand and connect our business decisions with ethical,
social and eminnmental Concem:s

Mehran through s sods actnatlies, has bean tnang o
improve tha haalth and education standands in thea
urcler devsloped areas of Simdih espacaly nour malls
area. We fund programs that are maasurable, sustainsbile
and repicabie and subSacuenly monibor Thesm Clossly
1o ensure their success, In addition, we also give
donations 10 enowned rusts winch ar also prowding
senvices similar to our dasing,

LAE.

ﬂ"‘l ‘.I |

.H_*- .

Mo, of Growth %

Students

Gron -.-l:h ]i"l:m i P:-:n-]-'-n-':d‘

ANNMNLAL REP

Sorme of the progects undertaken nclude:
Dacod Memorial School (DMS)

Daood Memaonal School, stuated inside the premses
of MSML, is a fully equipped educational center
specifically meaant for our mill ermployess and generally
for the youth of Tando Allsyvar and its vicinity, FOF mons
than a decades the schodl has been prowading guasity
equcatson and tacilitatng siudents 10 earm and create
their future thamsehes, By the grace of Allah Almeghty
and dua 1o the untiiing efforts and commitrment of the
faculty and the management, the school has bean
growing steaddy. it has been providing education upto
Maincudator. In view of the growth of DMS, we infand
b0 INCreass T MUMmDer of SIucents inom Sbe? 10 SSlin
resd thrae years and continue to provide adequate
infrastruciure for the samea

1} pl! RS
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MEML Mobile Dispensary

Thi obsaciive of RS
St haalth Cang Sereid
1 NEady in ihe
W staried our first Mobda Dhspeansany und in Juna
AU and 50 far it has daeognosed and trealed 249 Ghd
fienils for vanows sirments. Dunng the penod Cotoder
AUT0 10 :::I'| termoar A0 1. i hed provined senaces 10
3, 739 patients

i & - ™ - - - -
VOO LUsensany 5 1o provace

5 Al 1Ne JoorSstep of the

sumoundings of Tanda Alah

Mahran Vocational Training Center for Women

o 1 Viocational Traimng Center, 10
A .

o by 1 £F z

worman of the
embroidany, «

woman ava attenoed banalicsal courses al our
SOCANONE tramning canter e ] ihéam 10 Ltz e 1heir
spare tima in a creatrve and constrectivie way and
CIFTRCNNG] SONTee INMEOVEITIen in N noutineg ife '-'::.i'-

TCF School-Haji Hasham Campus

with of thae anssa.

o e Elaebmeoy Erd atals
3 AL PSS 1Arm oL

Nk Wi Nave GoNalac
=R O LA assoreabed

COnCe estanished [or uncertakimd Watans Cinines
They have combined hands wath Tha Cilizens
Founciation for &s Mg 8 modarm SCnool in Fiyaro
ind areg, approx 13 koms from Tando Allayar. Tha
S ILIMChes [ 20 10 b




Board of Directors

Tha Board of Directors of the Company consists of
Seven members, comprisang of thres non-executives
{including the Chairman) and four executive Deectons
The Board is responsible for indepandantly and
transparantly maon I|}!|."||'j| the parormanca of tha
Company and taking stratedic dedissons 10 achve
o stanable gronth in the Company operations, Withen

Dwirinigy 1he year undar reew, a 1otal of four meatings
of the Board wena convenad and the attendance of
the meambers was as folows

. Moharmmad Kasem Hasham

Aohans

* Mr. Abcul Razzan ratired in January 2011 and
K. Faroq Hassan was appointad in placo

The leave of absence was granted 10 the direciors
wha could not attend somea of tha maastings dus 1o
thair absance rom the |:{:|_|"|1r:.- aor il heaith

Statement of Ethics & Business Practices

Tha board has adoptad tha statemnant of Ethics &
business practices, All amployees are informmed of
tres statermont and S recpuerod 10 Otesene (s nubes
of conduct in relation 1o customers, suppliers and
MECJLILA RO,

Audit Committes
e Aol Cormrmeiios (& of tha Company Comjnsss
of threa non-executive (including the Chairman)

Dereciors. A total of four meatings of tha AC warns
held during the year,

e -

External Audit

The Company wishes 1o place on record NS
appraciation for the services rendered by the
Company's audtors M's. Brngl & Yourg Foed Bhodes
Sidat Hyder., Charlesd Accountants, who complsted
tha audi of mnancal stalemeants of the Compary ior

oy

the vear ended Septemiber 30, 2011
Cost Audit

The Company's Accounts werne also subject to cosl
audit under the Companies Bodit of Cost Accounts)
Rules, 1998, M/s. Haroon Zakaria & Company,
Charterad Accouniants parfamed he cost audit of
the Company, who ware recommended for
appointment by the Board of Direciors and duly
approesed by the Seousites and Exchanos Commission
of Pakestan (SECH].
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One of our major investment this
year was the introduction of Mill Max
Technology which will improve our

milling efficiency
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Certificate of Eelated Parties Transactions

it is confimmad that the transactions antenasd with reated
parties have been verilied by the audit commities and
the Board, and provides the information about the
amount due from redaled parties al the balancea sheet
data, and tha proportion of receivables from relalad
parties provided as doubtful debts, if any.

Material Changes
There have been no matenial changes since Septermber
30, 2011 and the Company has not entered into any

commatment, which would affect ils financial position
at e date,

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of sharsholding as an Saptembar 30,

2011 is included in the annexed shareholders'
infcrrmation.

Karachi: December 16, 2011

| Acknowledgment

Wa arg trpng ouwr best 1o satsly Sharaholders’
expectations. For enhancing our efforts, we woulkd ke
o appreciata tha denotion and afforis of the workers,
siaff and executives and anficipate thal in the fulure
a5 wadl they wall contnbute towands 1he enfancenment
of the productivity and well beng of the Cormpany with
greater zeal and spin.

The Board further extends iis gratilude o the
government functionanes, associations, banking and
financal instifutions, sharesholders and Supphers (or
the valued support and co-operation extended by
them for the bettermmant and prosporty of the Comparny:.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohammed Ebrahim Hasham
Chief Executive Officer
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting

as &t Saptember 30, 20

Matice i hereby given that the 46th Annual General Mesting of the mambers of the Company will be hald at
LC.AP. Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi on Tuesday, January 31, 2012 at 1700 PST
10 transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on January 21, 2011;

2. To receive, consicer and adopt the Auwdited Financial Statements of the Company together with the
Direciors' and Auditors’ Reports for the year ended Seplemiber 30, 2011;

3. Toconsider and approve Final Cash Dividend issued @7 ,5% i.e.Re.0.75 per share in addition 1o 22.5% ie.
Rs.2.25 per share interim dividend already paid and 10% bonus shares in addition to 10% interdm bonus
shares already issued by way of issue of fully paid ordinary shares in the proportion of 10 shares for every
100 shares hedd Dy the members for the yvear ended Seplember 30, 20011 as recommended by the Board
of Directors of the Company. To further approve consolidation of fractional shares and disposal of is
procaads 1o chamable institutions.

4 To appoint auditors for the year ending September 30, 2012 and to fix their remuneration. The retiring
auditors M/s. Emst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Charterad Accountants being eligible, have offered
thermsebves for re-appeintmeant.

B. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair

SPECIAL BUSINESS
6.  To approve the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and three Working Direclors of the Company.

A staternent under section 160{1)ib) of the Companies Ordinance 1984, partaining to the above-menticned
Special Business, is being sent to the mambers with thes notice.

By order of ihe of Board of Directors
Muhammad Hanil Aziz
Karachi: December 16, 2011 Company Secratary



NOTES

1. The share transfer books of tha Company will rermain dosad from January 25, 2012 to January 31, 212
(both days inclusive),

2. A member entitied to attend and vote at the Annual General Mesting may appoint another mamber as
hes/her prowy 1o attend and vota in hisher behalf, Procies in order 10 be afiective must be recened by the
Company al its Registerad Offica not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual Genaral
Mieeting.

3. Theshareholders whose shares are registered in their account/sub-account with Central Depasitory System
(CDS) are requested 10 bring their CNIC alongwith their account nurmber in COS and participant's 1D number
for verification. In case of appointment of proxy By such account holders and sub-account holders the
guidalines as contained in SECP's circular 1 of 26th January, 2000 to be followed.

4.  The shareholders are requested to notify the Company immediately the change in their address, if any,

5. The shareholders are also requested 10 intimate us ther CNIC # to implement the requirements of Annual
Returms (Form A) which the Comparny is reguired to file with the SECP under section 156 of the Companies
Ordinance 1984,

STATEMENT L/S 180{1)) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

This Statement sels oul materal facls concerning Special Business to be transacted at the 45th Annual General
Meating of the Company to be held on Jamnuary 31, 2012, The approval of the Members of the Compary will be

=sought for:
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

The Board of Direclors has recommended thal the remuneration of the Chiel Executive: Officer and Wordng
Directors will be increased as follows:

Designation Last Remuneration Proposed Remuneration Last Renvision
CEO Rs. 410,000 Rs. 450,000 Jan.-2011
Working Director Fs. 330,000 Fs. 355,000 Jan.-2011
Working Director Fs, 110,000 As, 120,000 Jan.-2011

Working Director Rs. 90,000 Fs. 100,000 Jan.-2011



Statement of Compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance

The statement is being presented 1o comply with the Code of Comporate Governancs (The Code) embaodied in the
listing reguiations of Karachi Stock Exchange for the purpess of establishing a framework of good governance,
whersby a ksted compary is managed in compliance with the best practices of Corporate Govemance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

10,

11.

12,

The Board of Directors congists of four execulivg and three non-axecutive direcion nchuding tha chaimman).
Al the directors take keen interest in the Compary's affairs.

The directors have confimed that none of them is sening as a director in more than ten kisted companies,
including this Company

All the resident directors of the Company are registersd as tagpayers and none of them have defaulied in
payrment of any loan 1o banking compary, DFI or NEF), or being a member of a stock axchanga, has bean
declared as a defautter by that stock eccchange.

The Company has prepared a “Statement of Ethics and Bussness Practices” which has bean adopted by
the board and signed by all the directors and employees of the Company,

The Board has developed a vision staternent, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Compary. A complate record of paniculars of significant policies along with the date on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decision on material ransactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and condiions. of employment of the CEOD and
other axecutive dineciors, have been taken by the Board,

The meatings of the Board wene presided over by the Chalrman and, in his absenca, by a Director elected
by the Board for this punpose and the Board mat at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board

meating, along with agenda and working papers, wene circulated al least seven days before the mestings.
The minutes of the meatings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board aranged necessary orientation courses for #is Directors 1o apprise them of their duties and
responsibilities.

The CEO under the powers dslegalad by Board has approved the appointment of Chied Financial OfScer
RO, Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Awdit. Their rsemuneration, terms and conditions of
ermployment have also bean approved by tha CEO.

Thie Directors” Repor for the year ended Saptember 30, 2011 has been prepared in complance with tha
requiremenis of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required 1o be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsad by the CEOQ and CFO before approval of the
Board.

The directors, CED and executives do not hold any imerest in the shares of the Company other than
dsciosed in the pattern of sharsholdings.



13.

14,

15:

16.

v

18.

18,

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.
The Audt Comimittes comprises three non-Executives Directors inckiding the Chaimnan.

The meetings of the Audit Committes were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of imerim and
final results of the Company &5 reduired by the Code. The terms of referances of the Commities have baan
farmed and advised 1o Committee for compliance.

The Board has sel up an effective internal audit function manned by suitably qualiied and axpenancead
personnal who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and are involved in the
internal audit function on a full tima basis.

The statutory auditors of the Gompany have confirmed that they have been given salistactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of
the partners of the fimn, their spouses and minor children do nat hold shares of the Company and that the
fir and al its partners ane in compliance with Intemational Fedearation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
Code of ethics as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services excep! in accordanca with the Esting reguiations and the auditors have confinmed thal thay have
obssrved IFAC guidalings in this regard.

We confirm that all olher matenal principles contained in the Code have been complied with,

The related parly transactions entered during the year ended Seplember 30, 2011 have been placed before
the Audi Committes and approved by the Board of Directors in their meetings hedd on December 16, 2011,

Faor and on behall of the Board

Karachi: December 16, 2011

Mohammed Ebrahim Hasham
Chiaf Executive Officer
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Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance
with the Best Practices of the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance (the Statement) with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance (the Code) for the year ended 30 September 2011 prepared by the Board of Directors of
Mehran Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) to comply with the Listing Regulations No. 35 Chapter X| of Karachi
Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not carried
out any special review of the internal control systems to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board's
statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Further, Sub-Regulation (xiii a) of Listing Regulations 35 notified by The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee)
Limited vide circular KSE/N-269 dated 19 January 2009 requires the Company to place before the Board of
Directors for their consideration and approval, related party transactions distinguishing between transactions
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price, recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further,
all such transactions are also required to be separately placed before the audit committee. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the board
of directors and placement of such transactions before the audit committee. We have not carried out any
procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Staterment does not
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the
Code for the year ended 30 September 2011.

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
KARACHI: December 16, 2011 Chartered Accountants




Auditors' Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheat of Mebran Sugar Mills Lirited (the Company) as al 30 September
2011 and the related profit and loss account, statemant of comprehensive income, cash Bow statement and
statermeant of changes in equety together with the noles forming parl thaneof, for the yvear then ended and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, 1o the best of our knowledge and belief, wera
necassary 1or 1he puposes of our audit,

It is tha esponsibility of the Company's managemeant 10 establish and maintain a system of intermal contral, and
prepare and present the above Said staterments in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1884, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements
based on our aucdit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perfom the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
staternents are free of any material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation
of the abonve said statements. We balenve that our aud provides a reasonable basis for our Opireon and, after due
verification, we report that:

a)  inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ondinance, 1984;

(a1 iry Cr Cinaan:

i} 1he balance sheet and profil and 083 account together with the notes thesaon hawve Deen drawn up in
confomity with the Companies Ordinanca, 15984, and ana in agreameant with 1he books of account and
ama further in accordance with accounting policies consistently appiied exoep! for changes as stated in
note 2.3 1o the accompanying financial statemeants with which we concur;

i} tha expendiure incumed during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

i tha business conducted, irvestments made and the expenditure ncuemed during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Compary;

) in our opineon and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given 10 us, the batance
sheet, profit and loss acoount, statement of comprehensive income, cash Bow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part therecof, conform with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakiztan, and, give the informaltion required by the Companies Ordinance, 1584,
in the manner so requined and respeciively ghve a true and fair vew of the state of the Company's affairs as

al 30 Seplember 2011 and of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash fiows and changes in equity for
tha vear than ended; and

o) in our opinion, Zakal deductible al scurce under the Zakal and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (O of 1280), was
deducied by the Company and deposited i the Central Zakat Fund estabkshed under seciion 7 of that
Ordinance.

We draw your attention 1o noles 27.1 1o 27.5 1o tha financial statements. The Company is defendant in vanous
law swits which are pending adjudications. The ultimate outcome of the matiers cannod presently be determined
and no provision for any kabdity that may resull has been macde in these financial statemants. Dur opinion s not
qualifed in respect of these matiers.

Emst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
Chartered Actountants

Audi Engagement Pariner; Fiaz & Rehman Chamdia
Karache: Dacember 16, 2011



Balance She

15 at Septemibear 30, 201

et

ASSETS

MOMN-CURREMNT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Long-térm recenabie
Long-tenm inestment
Long-term ceposits

CURBEMT ASSETS

Biological asgels

Stones and spare parts

Slock-in-trads

Trade debts

Loans and achancas

Trade deposts and shoe-term prepayments
Crher recefvables

Short-term invesiments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

BHARE CARITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Peserees

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term financing

Liabdities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred liabiities

Deferred taxation

Provision for quality premium

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Aceriud mak up

Short-tarmm Domowings

Current portion of long-term financing

Current matunty of habdibes aganst asssts subiset to inancs hiass
Prowision for market committes fiae

Income tax - net

Sales tax payable

Federal Excise Duty / Special Excise Duty payabie

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Mate

=] 38 Ch

o0 O

Tk By —= 1

14
15

18
19

21

24

18
18

2011 2010
Fupees Fupees
1,088, 780008 B4aT 853 503

218,718,336 178,07 7.471
B 545 735 3,50 400

43 315 568 13,347 530
i, 7a5.462 56,961,715
1,458, 570,403 253,836 978
4,683,163 S, 560,989
31.020.412 B4, 487,408
14 660,505 22820548
472171 S63.07T

162, 588 BES &1, 480,776
11,843.333 113,747,245
1,806 467 2596 707 367,775

172,846,820 142,831,250
619,891,757 379483108
o2 238,577 B2 414,358
175,000,000 203,750,000
14,058.091 16,221.811
5,681,087 5,742,073
158,054 830 116,240 088
119,290.818 119,280.919
472 086,727 461,254 791
1,634,127 427 B06,527.976
8,627.061 10,806,928
. 29,998 978
128,750,000 40,000,000
6,340,843 7,374,300
42, 777958 32,700,000
20,695,628 14,824,491
. 9,489,324
12,250,753 .
1,854,587.671 751,721,999
3,119,512.975 1,735,391,149

The annexed notes from 1 10 44 Torm an integral pan of these financial statements.
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Profit and Loss Account

r the year ended September 30, 2011

Mota 2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
Tumaver 28 4,506,206,142 4,025,770,523
Less:
- Sales tax 169,820,602 159,257 861
- Special excise duty 34,017 888 25,167 .855
- Federal excise duty arA18,347 -
241 257 837 184 425716
4,355,038,305 3,841,344 BOT
Cost of sales 28 (3,773,642,501) {3,366,565,8648)
Gross profit 581,395,804 474,778,919
Distribution costs 30 (5.163,852) (5,442,782)
Administrative expenses 31 | (103,333,544) {81,953 8549)
Other operating expenses 32 {43,544, 444) {33,377,182)
(hiher operating income 33 80,259,085 38,076,640
(F1.782,755) 81,687 183)
509,613,049 393,081,736
Share of profit from an associate - net of tax 7 40,640,865 1,848,209
Finance costs 3 (133,757.171) (73.800,473)
Profit befora taxation 416,496,743 321129472
Tancation as {593.540,144) {79,143,207)
Profit after taxation  BP3P56500 041,086,065
Restated
Basic and diluted eamings per share 35 18.67 13.99

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral pan of these financia sialements.

toe

CHIEF BXECUTIVE OFFICER RECTOR



Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the vear ended Septembar 30, 2011

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Net loss on available for sale nvestments

Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments during the year

Reciassikcation adustments included in
the profit and loss account for:

- Gain on sale of imvestments - net
- |mpainment on imestments

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2011 2010
Fupees Fupees
322,856,599 241,988,265
17.481,161) {9,542,009)
(1.067,858) {4,609,529)
16,965,220 8,123,647
(1,583,830 5,027,891)
321,272,769 236,058 374

The annesed notes from 1 10 44 form an integral part of these financial staternents.

CHIEF VE OFFICER
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Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIMITIES
Profit batore laxation

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Dapraciation

Share of profit from an associate

(Gain on disposal of fixed assats

Finance costs

Haalmed gain on desposal of short term investrments
Provision for staff gratuity

Impairment on short-1erm investrments

Provision for market commitiee fee

Working capital changes

Staff gratuity paid

Taxes paid

Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMITIES
Fixed capital expendiure

Long tenm deposits

Shor-term imaestments

Procesds from disposal of sho term imestments
Procesds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES
Long tesrm financng - ne

Liabilities agains! assets subect 1o finance lease
Dividend paid

Met cash generated from financing activities

Mote

37

Mat (decreasa) / increasa in cash and cash equivakents during the year

Cash and cash aquivalents at tha baginning of 1he yaar

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash and bank balances
Short-term Dorowings

15
26

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral pan of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

201 2010

Rupees Rupees
416,496,743 321,129,472
75,567,941 47,901,533
(40,640,865) (1,848,209)
{412,552) (1,137,331)
133,757,171 73,800,473
(14,177,188 [5,252,266)
1,097 678 1,656,070
16,965,228 8123647

10,077,959 >
w310, 148,371,021
87 864,437 272 .6514,938
(1,157, 764) {781,7949)
(50,978,308 {12,662,045)
{134,837 ,038) (73,255,333
317,288,070 507 045,233
(317.816,699) (385,027,213)
(4,553,335) (2,000,000}
(158,871,673) (111,735, 244)
82 991,688 50,408,372
1,833,905 2,484,156
J13) 445 BED, D2}
[ 60,000,000 | [ 121,607,200
(3,187,279) 17,567,323
{49,485,612) (47,450,252) |
7,323,109 81,754,271
(71,804,934) 152,929 575
83,748,267 (69,181,308

11843333 .
11,943,333 113,747,245
- (29,998,978
11,943,333 B3.748.267



Statement of Changes in Equity
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2

2.3

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Mehran Sugar Mills Lirmited (the Compary) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on
Decamber 22, 1965 undear the Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Ondinance, 1984). The shares of the
Company are quoled on Karachi Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of sugar. The registered office of the Company is situated at Adamiee Housa, 8th
Floce, LL Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The mill of the Company is located at Distt. Tando Allahyar, Sindh,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Staternent of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) ssued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board and Islarmic Financial Accounting
Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakisian as are notiied under the
Companies Ordinance, 1584, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
In case requiramens differ, the provsions or dinectives of 1he Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

Accounting comention
These financial statemensave been preparad under the histoncal cost convention.
Mew and amended standards and inlerpretations

The Company has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC inferpretations which became
effective during the yvear

IFRS 2 - Group Cash-setfled Share Based Payment Arrangemenis
LAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Right Issues (Amended)
IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabdities with Equity instruments

Improvements 1o vanous standards issued by 1ASB
Issuad in 2009

IFRS 5 - Mon-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinuad Operations
IFRS 8 - Operating Segments

145 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

145 17 - Leases

&S 36 - Impasment of Assels

IAS 39 - Financial Instrumments: Recognition and Measurement

Issuad in May 2010

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
A5 27 - Consclidated and Separate Financlal Stalements

The adoplion of above standards, amendments / improvernents and interpretations: did not have any
matarial effect on the inancial statemeants.



Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4

nded September 30, 2011

Slandards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the cumrent financial year

The foliowing revisad standards and interprefations with respect o approved accounting standards as
appicabla in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective revised
stanclard or inferpratation:

Standards or inemeetation Effective date
{accounting periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 1 -  Presentation of financial statements - Amendments July 01, 2012

10 revise the way ofher comprehensive incorma is

presented

IFRS ¥ - Financal instruments @ Disdosuras - Amandments enhancing disclosunes
about transfers of financal assets Jully O, 2011

IAS 12 -  Income tax (Amendment) - Defemed taxes, Recovery of underlying assets  January 01, 2012
IAS 19 - Employes benafits - Amended standard resulling from the

Post-Ermployment Benefits and Termination Benafits projects January 01, 2013
IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosuras (Hevised) Jarary 01, 2011
IFRIC 14 - Prepayments of a Minsmum Funding Requisement - (Amendment) January 01, 2011

The Company expects that the adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpratations of the
standards will not have army matedal impact on the Compamy's financial statements in the peod of intial

In addition 1o above, amendmens to vardous accouning standards have also been Bsued by the IASE.
Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods. beginning on or after January 01, 2011,
The Company expects that such improvemnents of the standards will not have amy materal impact on the
Company”s financial stalements in the perod of infliall application.

Further the following new standards have been issued by SH which are yet to ba notified by tha Securities
and Exchanga Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purposa of applicabsity in Pakistan:

Standards or inempretation IASE Effective date
facoounting periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 - Financal Instruments January 01, 2015
IFRS 10 - Consclidated Financial Statements January 01, 2013
IFRS 11 - Joink Arrangements January 01, 2013
IFRS 12 - Disclosures of interests in Othar Entities January 01, 2013

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement January 01, 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements

ear ended September 30, 2011

SHGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The proparation of the Compamy's linancial slatements requires managament 1o make judgments,
estimales and assumplions that affect the repored amounts of evenoeas, axpanses. assals and Ebilites,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilites, at the end of the mporing perod. However, uncertainty abaout
thiss assumypdions and estimates coukd resull mouloomies. thal recuine & malenial adjustmaent 1o the camang
armount of e asset or liabiliby affectad in fulure penods.

In the process of appling the Comgany's accounting policies, management has made the folloeang
estimates, udpgaments and assumplons which are signilicant to the financial statements;

Property, plant and equipment

Thie Company raviews appropriatensess of the rale of depreciation and wvseful Be used n the calculation of
depreciation. Further, whem apphcable, an estimate of he recoverabia amount of assels i made lor
possibls mpaimment on an annual Basis, Inomaking thess astimales, the Company uses the technical
resouross availalie with the Company. Any change in the estimates in (he future might affect the camyng
amount of respective ilem of property, plant and equpment, with comasponding ellects on the depreciabon
charga and mpainment,

Biological assels

The fair value of growing crops is delermined based on the estimated selling prices approximately thoss at
wiaar end less astimated cosis to sall at the haresting state,

The fair valee of growing crops s based on the mindmum prices fxed by the Govemment,
Slock-in-trade and stores and spare pars

The Company revienws the net realizable valiee of stock-in-irade and stores and spame pars 0 assess any
diminution in the respectve camying values, Mol realizable value B estimated wilth relersncs Lo the estimaled
salling price in the ordinary course of businegss ems the esliimated cosl necessary o make the sake,

Trade delis and recohabios

The Comipany reviesws its doubtiul trade debils and receivables at aach eporing date 10 assess whealhar
provision shoukd be recorded in the profit and loss account. In particular, judgment by management is
reqyuired in the estimation of the amouwnt and tming of fulure cash lows when determinng the level of
provision eouired, Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual resalls
ey differ, resulling m fulure changes o the rovisons.

Tauxation

In making the eslimate for income fax payvable by (he Compamy, the Company takes into account the
appbcable fax laws and the decision by appellate authorities on cerfain issues in the past,

Deferred tax asseds ame recognized for all unused fax losses and credits (o the extent that it B probable that
taxabie profil will be avallable against which such osses and credits can be utiized. Significant management
judgment is required o delerming the amounl of deferred tax assels thal can Be recognized, based upon
the likeky timing and kevel of fulume taxebie profits logather wilh fulure lax planning stralegies,



Notes to the Financial Statements

4.1

y year endad September 30, 2011

Staff Retirermant benefits

Centain actuanial assumplions have been adopled as disclosed in note 20.2 to the financial statements for
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these assumptions in future years
might affect gains and losses in those years.

Cruality premium and markat committes fea

The Company accounts for provision for quality premium and marke! committee fee taking into
consideration the acvice of 15 legal counsel and recent decisions of the relevant authomteas.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing these financial statements are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment

Crwmed

These are staled at cost less accurmulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value, except
far land, which is stated at cost. The cost in relation to certain fed assets signifies historical cost and cost
of bomowings during period of construction / installaticn.

Depraciation & charged to income wsing the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 5.1,
Depraciation on additions is charged from the manth in which the asset is put to use and on disposals up
to tha month the asset in usa.

The carrying values of tha Company's proparty plant and equipment ane reviessed at aach financial year end
for impaimment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camang value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication esdsts, and where the camying values excesd the estimated resoverable
amount, he assets ane written down o their recoverable amoun.

Fepairs and maintenance cost s written off to the profl and loss acoount in the year inwhich it is incurmed,
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it i probable that respective Tulure Bconomic
beneafits will flow to the Company.

An ftemn of proparty plant and aquipment s derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure GConomic
benefits are expected from s use or disposal. Gain or loss on dsposal of property plant and equipment s
recognized in the penod of disposal.

Leased

Leases which transfer to the Company substantialy all the isks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leasad item are capialized al the inception of the lease, at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower
at the present vaiue of the menimum lease payments. Lease payments ane apportionad batween the finance
charges and reduction of the lease labdity so0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the Eability,

Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated using the same basis as for owned assals,



Notes to the Financial Statements

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

423

4.3

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost kess accurmulated impaimment, if any, and represent expenditure on fived assels in
the couwrse of construction and installation. Transters are made 10 relevant property plant and equipment
category as and when assets are available for their inMtended use.

Investments
In an associated comparny

Irvestiment in an associaled company is accounted for using equity method of accounting. mvwestiments
over which investor has “significant influenca” are accounted for under this method iLe., investments to be
camied in the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in tha share of net assets of the associate,
less any impairment in value, if matenal. The prof and loss account reflects the share of the results of
operations of the associate. If an associate uses accounting policies olher than those of the Company,
adjustments are made 1o conform the associate’s policies 1o thosa of the Company, if the impact is
considerad material. Profits and losses resulling from upstream’ and ‘downstream” transactions batwean
the Company and an assodcate are recognized only o the extent of unrelated Company's interest in the
associate.

Investments - available-for-sale

Irvestments which the management intends 1o hold for an indefinite penod, but may be sold in response
io the need for iguidiy or changes in interest rales are classified as available-for-sale,

Thesa imvesiments are infially recognised al cost, being the fakr value of the consideration given including
tfransaction costs associated with the imestment. After initial recognition, these irvestments are remeasuned
al tair vahue.

For imestiments raded in active market, fair value s determined by reference to quoted market price and
the imvestiments for which a gquoted marke! price is nol available, or the fair value cannot be reasonably
calculated, are measured at cost, subect 1o review for impaimnent al each balance shest date,

Gains of losses on available-for-sale investmenis are recognsad in aguity unil the investrment is dsposed
or determined to be impaired, at whach time the cumulative gain or loss previoushy reported in equity s
included in income.

Irrvestments - Held-to-rmaturity

Imvesiments with fixed or daterminable payments and fixed maturily whera management has bath the
positive inent and abslity 1o hold to maturity are classibied as hedd to maturity and are stated al amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised n profit or loss when the
ivvestrmants ane derecognised o impaired, as well as through the amonisaton prooess.

Biological Assats

International Accounting Standand [JAS) - 41 “Agriculiure” requires beological assels 10 be measured on inftial
recognition and at each balance sheet date at its falr value less cosls 1o sel. A gain or lpss arising on indial
recognition of a biclogical asset at fair value less costs 10 sell and from a change in fair value kess costs to
sell of a biclogical asset shall be included in profit or loss for tha period in which i arsas.



Notes to the Financial Statements

4.4

45

48

4.7

4.8

nded September 30, 2011

Slores and spare parts
These ars valuesd at lower of cost, calculatad on moving averags Basis Ess provision for obaolascence and
slow moving, if any, and nat realizable value, Hems in transit are stated at invoice valua plus other charges
incurred therean, if any.

Met realisable valus is the estimated selling prce in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
necessary to make the sala,

Siock-in-trade

Siock-in-trade 5 valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realizable value, Cost in relation 1o
work-in-process and finished goods consist of manufacturing cost comprising prime cost and appropriate
proportion of faciony overheads.

lterms in transi are stated al cost compnising Imvoice value plus ciher charges paid thereon at the balance
sheet date.

Met realizable value signifies the prevailing selling prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
cosls of complation and selling expenses incidental 1o sales.

Trade deibis and other recenvables

Trade debls and other receivables are stated at original imvolce amount less provision for doubtful debts,
any. Provision for doublful debts’ recetvable is based on the management’s assessment of cusiomers’
outstanding balances and creditworihiness, Bad debls are written-off when identified,

Cash and cash aquivalonts

Cash and cash equivalents are camed in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of cash flow, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cheques in hand, deposits hedd with banks and other short
term highly bousd investrments net of shon temm Borowing.

Siaff retirement benefils

Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity schame (defined benefit schama) for is employess, An
actuanal valuation has been camied oul &t September 30, 2011, using the Project Unit Credit Method, to
cover his obligation under the schame for its employeas aligible 1o gratuity benafs.

Prowadent fund

The Company also operates a recognized provident fund for these permanent employess who have opled

for it. Bqual montihly contributions are made to the fund by the Company and employees in accordance with
the fund's rules.

Compensaled absences

The Company accrues it's estimated labdity towards leaves accumutated by employeses on an acorual basis
Lesing current salary level.
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410

4Mn

412

4.13

4,14

Prowision for current taxation is basad on taxable income at the currant rates of taxation, afler taking into
account tax credits and rebates available, if amy, or one parcent of lumover, wischaver is hegher,

Deferred

Deferred fax is recognized using the balance sheet Fability method, on all temporary differences arising at
the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilties and their carmying amounts for financial
reporting puUrposes.

Deferred tax Eabidities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Delemred fax assels are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it s probable that the futune taxable
profits will ba available against which the assets may be ulilized. Deferred tax assels are reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable thal the related 1ax benefit will be realized.

Defermed tax assels and labdities are measured al the fax rales thal are expacied 1o apply 1o the pencd
when the asset is realized or the liabilty is seftled, based on the tax rates (and 1ax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheel date.

Trade and clher payables

Liahilities for trade and other amounts payvable are camied at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the futurs for goods and sendices receved, whether or not billed 10 the Compansy,

Provisions

Provisions ara recogrsad when the Company has a present obligation fegal or construcinve) as a rasult of
a past event if it is probable that an outliow of resources embodying economic banaflits will ba required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation, Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheat date and adpusted (o reflect the cument bast estimata.

Forgign curmency transactions and franslation

Foreign curency ransactions are translated info Pak Bupses using the axchange rates prevaiing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assels and liabdities in foreign currencies are ransiated into Pak Rupees
using the exchange rate al the balance sheel date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seftliernant of such transactions and from the franstations: at tha vear end exchange rates of monefary assais
and labilites denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the: profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Interest / mark-up direcily atiributable to the acouisition / construction / installation of gualifying assels s
capitalized, Al ciher inance Costs are charged 1o profit and I0ss acoount curmantly,

Impainment

The camying values of the Company’s assets except for invenlones and defermed 1ax assals ard revienwed
at each balanoe sheat date to determina whather there is any indication of impaimnent. H any such indication
exists the assets recoverabla amount is estimaled and impaimment osses are recognised in the profit and
loss account.
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4.18

4.19

420

endead Septembar 30

Related Party Transactions

All fransactions with related parlies are camied out by the Company wsing the methods prescribed under
the Cormpanies Ordinanca, 15984,

Financial instrumants

Al financial assets and liabilties are recognized at the time when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized in the case of assets, whan the contractual
rights under the instruments are reafiized, expired or swmendered and in the case of kability, when the
obhgation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial instruments carmed on the balance sheat include imsestments, deposits, receivables, lpans, cash
and bank balances, borowings, long term financing, trade and othar payables. The particular recogmition
miihod adopted &5 disclosad in the individual policy statermants associated with each financial instrument.

Ay gain / loss on the recognition and derecognition of the financial assets and Eabilities is included in the
prodit and loss for the period inwhich it anses,

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilties

Finandial assels and financial kabiities are offsat and 1he net amount & reparted in the balance sheeat when
the Company has a legally enforceable nght 10 set-off the transaction and infends 1o saettle efther on a ned
basis or to realize the assed and settle the liabity simultanaoushy.

Revenua recogrificn

Sakes are recognized as revenus when imoiced, which generally colncides with dislhsery,

Faturm on bank deposils is recognized on accrual basis,

Dividend and appropriation 10 resenes

Dividend and appropaalion 1o reserves are recognized n the financial statements in the panod in which
thesea are approved,

Funclional and presentalion currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the company's funclional and
prasemation Cumency.

Nate 201 2010
Rupees Rupesas
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fied assols 5.1 991,686,763 B0, 740,183
Capital work-in-progress 52 87,084,145 38,213,320

1@@@“ Eq?sgﬁ:ilsﬁﬁ"
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5.1 Operating fixed assels
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9.1.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been
Allocated a5 follows:
Cost of sales 29 65,625,429 40,782,082
Adminsirative expenses a1 o252 T.116.451

75,567,041 47,0901 533
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Farmciirs Conl Aol Bk ks Gain hade o Farticilans ol

Degrecmitin Wahe Proceeds Dl Purchases
Toyomm Corolia Sakoon - AR 474 LABRO00 1014714 154,558 SO0 14ETE4 Hegosason Mk Sara Lliah
Housa o, B38,
Bacior 24,
Gy bghan-o- Baymar,
Katnchi
Towots Covolia XLI - AR 530 1,284,000 £58, 400 TITEOD  DOOADS  1TES0S MNegomancm MeJmaed Arswer
Housa o, 100,
Mghm Tt
Brawaipus
Bkl A VI - ALIG 032 BH0/000 140,533 SIRAET B30/I00 PASI  Negotason e Msal Khan
Houss Mo, Ak,
Creaf Court Roag,
Haraom
Tots 3133000 1. 711847 1.431.353 £.833.005 &1 55T
Mote 201 2010
Rupees Rupees
5.2 Capital work-in-progress
Gl works 13,963,623 8621318
Advance against supply of plant and machinary 83,130,522 29,592,002
2.2 E'?IDEHI1¢5 %EI .‘JIEEI}
521 Moverment
Civil wiorks Achvance against Tatal
L
{Rupees)
Balance as at Seplember 30, 2009 S88, 350 38,030,208 39,018,558
Capital expanditure incurmed / advances
mmade dunng the yaar 16,782,084 329,257 542 S46,049 626
Transior to operating fi<ed assois (9,149,1186) (337,696, 748) (346,844 864)
Balance as at September 30, 2010 8621318 29,592,002 38,213,320
Capital expandiuns inourmad ¢ advancss
rmade during the year 20,070,190 139,974,495 180,044,685
Transfer to operating fixed assetls {14,727 885) {85,435,975) (101,163,860

Balance as at Septernber 30, 2011 mlw E&Fﬁﬂ% a7 145
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} year enced ceptembar 30, 2017

2011 200
6. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE - Linsecured
Tender eamest monay 1,000,000 1,000,000
Dowen payment 33,125,000 33,125,000
Caher costs 8,385,006 8,385,996
42,510,99€ 42,510,996
Provision for doubtful receivable 6.1

6.1

{42,510,906)

(42,510,506

This représents down payrment made in respect of purchase of Thatta Sugar Mills (the mill) and other cost
in runring the mill from Movermber 1992 up 10 July 1923, when the mill was forcibly taken over by the
Gevernment of Sindh (GoS) without paying any amount, The Company fied a law st for Rs. 166 milon
being the amount of down payment, expenses incumed (including payment 1o workers) and loss of profits,
The GoS made a counter claim of Rs, 402 milkon against the Compary. The case is currently pending in
the Honorable High Court of Sindh for recording of evidences. White the Company's suit for recovery of
compensation i pending in the Honorable High Court of Sindh, the GoS imvted bids for sale of Thatta Sugar
Mills through Sindh Privatization Comemission but it cousd not succesd. The GoS is now trying to privatize it
through the Federal Privatization Commission. The representative of the GoS has also admitted the fact that
the mill was taken by Govermment withoul payment to the Company. Tha Company has made provision
against the aforesaid receivable as a matter of predence and the fact that the debt B outstanding for a
considerable peniod.

7. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

7.1

« In an associate
Mumbar o shams Faco wnhum e iof Bhan Mota 201 200
por sham Comgeamy Fupes Fuiposs
2011 2010
Fripses Fopees
11,549,298 10,480, 608 10 Linicol Lrrilisd Ta 216,716,336 178,077 471
{1 -t
LTy
Movament of invesiment in an associate
Dpening balance 176,077 471 174,229,262
Share of profit for the year - net of tax 38,446,000 8,286,135
Prior year's adjustment .11 2,194 865 (15,437 ,526)
216,718,336 176,077,471

The Company holds 33,33 (201(: 33.33) percent of the investea's total equity,

7.1.1 Represents net excess profit booked in pricr years on tha basis of unaudiad financial stalamants.
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vear ended Septer

7.2  The summarized financial information of the associale company based on unaudited financial statemants,
for the year ended September 30, 2011 (Septamber 30, 2010: audited), are as follows:
2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
Aggregate amount of:
- pssats 1,842,222 000 1,633,564,000
= linbilities 220,000 1,068, 747,000
- MEvenue 1,581,4.36,000 1,512,708,000
- prodit 115,338,000 31,443,000
8. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - At fair valua
Camying valug at beginning of 1he yaar 13,347 .530 8,748,440
Addition duea 10 cultivation 21,340,085 3,491 668
Giain arising from changes in tair value less costs 10 sell 21,975,473 8,855,862
56,663,008 22,005,970
Reduction due to harvesting (13,347,530} {B,748.440)

Carrying value af the end of the year

Operations and Principal Activities at Farms:

The Company & principally engaged in sugarcane cultation.
Financial Risk Management Strategies:

The Company s axposed to financial risks ansing from changes in sugarcane prices. The Company does

nol anficipate that sugarcana prices will decling significantly in the foreseeable future and therefore, has not
enterad into amy confracts 10 manage the nsk of a dedine in sugarcane prices,

43,315,568 ‘rE-.M?.E@D'

201 2010
Rupeas Rupeas
a, STORES AND SPARE PARTS
Slores 10,079,643 23,815,225
Spare parts 67,715,819 33,146,490

77,785,462 56,861,715

10. STOCK-IN-TRADE

hManufactured sugar
" Fﬂiﬂhﬁj ‘|45‘4|m4m quszgﬂisr
- Work-in-process 3, 763,964 3,207 539

_1,458,570,408 253,836 976
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for the vear ended September 30, 2011

MNate
11, TRADE DEBTS - ursascurad

21,671,030

Considerad good 1111128113
Considerad doubthu 11.4
Less: Provision for doubtiul delbis 11.4

2011
Rupees

4,683,163
16,887 867

16,987 867

2010
Rupaes

80,560,989
16,987 867

107 548,856

16,887 867

4683163 DO560,980

11,1 The aging of trade debts at September 30 is as follows:

Meither past due nor impaired
Past due bul nat mpaired

- within 80 days 158,463 60,560,989
- 81 - 180 days 4,524,700 &
4,683,163 60,560,989

11.2 Represenis receivable from Unicol Limited, an associated company amounting fo Rs.4.525 (2010 Rs

76.920) million.

11.3 The madmum aggregate amount due from associated company at the end of any month during the year

was Rs. 209.319 (2010: Rs. 150.36) mrllicn.

11.4 Includes an amount of Rs. 14.519 millon due from the Food Depariment, Government of Sindh (GoS). This
represents amount withheld by the Govermment of Sindh from the bils raised by the Company during the
vears from 18981 to 1983 on account of a dispute regarding the qualty of sugar. Corseguently, the
Company has withheld mark-up due to the Food Department, amounting to Rs. 6,192 million, Since then,
the matter is under litigation and pending before the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The amount recesvable
from the Department has been provided because it has been long time the case = pending and the

respective Eability of mark-up due 1o the Food Depariment. GoS was also wrillen back.

Mote 2011 2010
Rupees Rupess
12, LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsacured,
considensd good
Loans to stalf 12 1672422 1.581 453
Acbvances
= 1o suppliers 20823218 19,859,627
- 10 CANne Qrowers 12.2 7,308,333 61,987 611
= BAINS] Bxpenses 1,225,439 858,677
29,356,990 B2.905,915
31,029,412 B 487 408

121 Includes interest frea loans 1o employees for purchase of vehicle, repayabia in monthly instaliments.

122 Includes cost of seeds provided 1o the cane growers and the same are adjusted when sugarcane is

purchased from these cane growers.
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Mot 2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Tracle daposits:
Considersd good 148,500 188,500
Considensd doubthul 131 B 196,113 8,196,113
B.344 613 8384613
Less: Prowision for doubtiul degposits B1596,113 8,196,113
148,500 188,500
Shor-tenm prepayrments:
Consicerad good 14,521,095 | 2,183,550 |
Considensd doutth 53,441 563 441
15,084,536 2,757,000
Less: Prowision for doubtiul prepayrments 3,441 563,441
14,521,095 2.193,559
14 2,382 055

13.1 Represents amount paid by the Company to the Director General Defence Procuremeant (DGDP) as tender
money during the year 1995 to1%86 which has been withheld by tham on account of DGDP's risk purchase
claim on the Company, as fully described in note 27.2. Although the matter is under litigation, the Comparry,
as a matter of prudence, has mads full provision against the deposit in these financial staterments.

Moia 2011 2010
14.  SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS Rupees Rupoes
Held to maturity
Tarm deposit cenificates 141 3,300,000 3,300,000
Avalable for sale
Equity securities 1428143 150,688,880 88,180,776

1 11 F

14.1 Represenis term deposit cerificates deposited with the bankers under lien agains! guaraniess issuad by
them on bahall of the Company haning maturity upio sis months. These carry profit at the rate of 5.0 (2010:

5.0) percent per anmum.
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142  Avalabis fof Sake vestments

2011 2010
Murmiber of shans
B0000 .
. 58, 000
11,000 -
206,145 e
. 1230, TR
456, 823 p L]
AT0014 i, T5E
22 6,000 Liakin i)
- 22,841
38,160 16,050
7500 .
. 17 B2
104,501 apzag
50,000 50,000
41,554 i 554
16,660 2,500
Ehi I 211 867
1, 300000 .
22,301 .
40,000 20,000
19,5687 G
10,000 10,844
200,00 -
18000 -
- 1B0ETT
1, 155,000 -
35,000 20,000
- 3,000
171,522 121,636
5306 A2 680
7500 2000
130,00 165,000

Pakedan Pelrokeurn Limdsd
Pakisian Siate O Comparsy Limied
Linfosd Bard Linrdod

Al aharns Bre ondinany sRams ol Fs. 07 asch,

Fati |

4 848, 000
4,376,350
AEIT.28
A, 125, T
3,802, 660
6085250
BaT1, e
1214260

1,912,368
2 075,000
TEO o
2,002,537
16,050,443
14,760,000
1,30, 465
15,500,800
15,008
3,471,300
4.226,000
B0, 200

16,516,500
12852, 500

T 8,560
10,050,243
1, 350
T 818,200

166,668,880

2010
Fipsss

2, V506,000

10,017,382
2,553,048
3,3 007
5,050,965
2 2 0
1,525840
2, s 0m

1,800,208
6, 78628
1,664,500
1,250,162
f21,475
10,343,500

2,766,200
51,883
2,191,138

2,246,366
4,742,600

207,870
7,246,805
7,358,450

53T A0
8482658

8, 1E, 7

14.3 The aggregale cost of the above investmaent s Bs. 177170 (2010; Bs, 87.723) million, These investments

are stated at fair valua,

2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 92,837 52,845
Cash with banks in current accounis 11,850,486 113,694 400

11,843 333 113,747 245
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16. SHARE CAPITAL

=0 2010 2011 2000
Murritr of Shings Rupees Rupens
Authcriead canEal
B0, 000,000 ED, 000000  Ordinary shangs of P, 10 sach B0, 000,000 0L 000,000
Baund, Subscibad and pais-up capts
B, BEE, 10 ESEATED Ordinany abares of P 104 adah
fully paid in cash EQ ERF 800 ROLEET B00
50,000 SEDO00  Owclirdang Shanes of Pa 10/~ GaER
ESued far corsciration Cther hin cash & 500,000 3 E00.000

Issuad is fully pied Bonus shieos

7,874 58 5403, 750 | Opening baanco i, T, 750 54, 85T 500
3,001,587 2 A0 EDE | sscnd during tha yoar 0,01 B8R 2 B0e 280

10,87 E, 2032 7974078 Cicaing balnco 10, 7Ea, 0 78, 0 TR
17,204 BE2 14,785,125 172,846,520 142,801,260
17. RESERVES
Capilal resene
Share: premiLem 63,281,250 E3.281,250
Fimariun resenag
General A5, 000,000 F&5, D00, OO0
Acoumudated prolit 472,124,375 230,131,807
857,124,375 315,131 807
Unrealized {loss) / gain on rovaluation of availabie
for sake equity securities (513,868 1,068 962
amCIDEOLTOT 379,465,109
18. LOMNG TERM FINAMNCING - Secunod
noEimants Mlark-up Zm a1a
Nota Nurher  Commencr) PO ALpeas
from
From banking companss
Al Barska Bank Paigstan Lid. 181 18ouarterdy  Ocicber 3008 € monine KIBOR
piua 1 5 pod BNfwm 501,000,000 75,000,000
Bark A Habib Limiad BT Bouredy Jaway2010 6 monhs KBOR
plis 7.75% pid Bm 3,750,000 T8, 750,000
Bank Al Habit: Limiad 181 1Zosrtely  February 2017 B monms KBOR
phus 1.75% per annum 125,000,000 150,000,000
WECH Bank Limitead 181 1Zgartaly Feomaey 2017 3 months KIBOR
phs 2% per annum 125,000,000 -
75, 23, 750,000
Lesg: Curmard portion Show) ursder
pusr iy lahites 128,750,000 40,000,000
T7E0000 - Z53,750.00

181 This s secured by way of frsl pan passu chirpe ovr i asssts of the Company amouning 1o PS5 mikan,
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lad Septembear 30, 2011

19, UABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO HINAMNCE LEASES

Hapresant finance kasas anterad into with commercial banks for vehicles. Total kase renfals due wunder
vanous lease agreements aggregate to Rs. 25,872 532/~ (2010: Rs. 30,792,506/-) and are payable in equal
rmanthly instaliments latest by March 2016, Taxes, repairs, replacernent and insurance costs are 1o be bome
by the lessea. In case of termination of agreement, the lesses has to pay the entine rent for unexpined pericd.,
Financing rates of approximately 15.07 to 16.00 (2010: 14.32 to 15.34) percent per annum has been used
as dizcounting factor. Purchase options can be exarcised by the lessee in accordance with the respective
lease agreemeants, The movement in the finance kease Bability is as follows:

2011 2010
Mlinirram oaas Presant Mlinirmwsm loaas Fresan
Faryrmonts valua Paryrmonts Value
(Rupes)
Within one year 9,054,715 6,349,643 10,201,945 7,374,302
Altesr one yes bt ol mone Bhan e years 16,817,817 14,058,001 20,500,851 18,221 811
Total mirimum keass payrrects 75,872,502 20,408, 534 30,702, 596 23,596,113
Less: Amount nepresanting financs chams —  osfaeo8 0000 - 2 T.1bA 483 -
Pressenl wishas af FrniTosen kas: payirenls 20,408,534 20,408, 23,506,113 23,508,113
Less: Cusment rrasturity shown under curment Kbty 8,340,543 6,340,543 7.374,3002 7,374,302
14,058,001 14,058,061 16,221,811 18,221 811
Mote 2011 2010
20. DEFERRED LIABILITIES Fpes s
Stafl gratuity 20.1 5,681 987 5,742,073
201 Suaff gratuity
Cpening nat kability 5,742,073 4 BT 802
Expenso for the year 1,087 678 1,656,070
6,839,751 6,523 872
Benafits paid during tha year (1.157,764) [TB1.799)
Liability to be recognized 5,681,987 5,742,073
Expense for the year
Cuerant sendson cost 02,081 1,023,256
Interest cost 671,215 B32.814
Actuaral {gain) / koss recognized (175,618} -
Expense for the year 1,087 678 1.656,070
Reconcillation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,681,987 5,742,073
Uinrealized {gain} / acluarial losses . -
Liability to be recognized as at Septernber 30 5,681,987 5,742,073
Compariaons fof S yean:
As 8l Septermber 30 201 2010 2000 2008 2007
s (Rusens) —
Presenl value ol defined banelit obigation 5681887 5742073 4867802 5483775 5851620
Foir value of plan assets - - - - -

Dbzl 5681, 587 5, A2073 4,867,502 5,483,775 5851620
_—
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20.2 The Projected Unit Credit Method, using the folliowing significant assumpbons was used for the valuation of

Mole 2011 2010
Rupees Aupees
21. DEFERRED TAXATION
Credit balances ansing due 1o :
Accelerated tax depreciation, assels subject to
finance lease, accrued markup and long lerm imvestment 227 644 570 180,757,890
Debit balances ansing due 10;
Pravigion for gratuity (1,988 695) (2,009,726)
Prordsion for doubtiud dabits (5,045, 753) (5,545,753
Provision for doubtiu deposits and prepayments (3,055,844) (3,065,844)
Provdsion for impairmmeant on shor-temm imestments (123,900) 123,900)
Provsion for doubtiud long-term recavable {14,878,848) (14,878,848
Carry cver of minimum tax (43,586,700 (38,483.831)
155,585, ¥ 40) 64,507 902
158,054,830 116,249,988
22. PROMISION FOR QUALITY PRERILIM
Provigion for quality premium 221 118,280,919 119,280,919

thea scharme;

- discount rate a1 13 % par annum;

- expected rate of increase in salary kvl at 10 % per annum;
- expecied average remaining life of amployees 30 years,

22.1 Sugar mills in Sindh are required o pay quality premium 1o cane growers al the rate of fifty (50) paisas per
forty (400 Kg cane for each 0.1 percent of excess sucrose recovery above the benchmark of 8.7 percent

determined on over all sucrose recovery of each mill. The Company has challenged the levy of qualty
premiusm before the Honorable High Court of Sindh, which decided the matter against the Company. The
Company has filed an appeal with the Honorabke Supreme Court of Pakistan, Whie admitting the appeal
against the impugned judgment of the Honorable High Couwrt of Sindh, the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan granted stay to the Company. The Punjab Gowvernment s not levying any quality prermiun i viesw
of an earlier dectsion of Lahore High Court in a similar case wherein the Court had declared the demand of

quaity prermeum as: umianafiul,

Alhough the matter is under liigation, the Company has made full provision for qually premium in the
financial siatements, as a matter of prudence.
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Mota 2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
THRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Craditors 70,762,214 116,249,905
Accrued expenses 3,270,183 3,808,777
Actvances from customens 1,488,357 826 443,168,673
Workers' profits participation fund 231 22,149,673 17,265,025
Workars' welfane fund 11,253,052 11,820,153
Linclaimed dividend 7,368,122 6,010,183
Caher liabdities. 11,965,357 8,105,260
1,634,127 427 606,527,976
Balance at the beginning of the year 17,265,025 13,195,113
Allocation for the year 22,149,673 17,265,025
39,414 698 30,460,138
Add: interest on funds wlilized in the Company's business 113,800 200,782
30,528,408 30,660,920
Less: Amount paid to trusteas of the fund 17,378,825 13,295,895
22149673 17,265,025
ACCRUED MARK-LIP
- Subordinated loans - from related parties 219,181 219,181
= Short-term borowings 213,118 2,492 755
- Long-term financing 9,194, 782 8,005,012
9,627,061 10,806,928
SHORT- TERM BORROWINGS - Secured
From Banking companies
= Aunning financa under Mmark-up amangement 251 25,908 978

These wene sacurad aganst pladge of stock of sugar, wpolhecation of stores and spane parts and other
cumen! assels, first registerod charge on fied assets of Company and continuing guarantes of the
company. Thesa finances formed part of the aggregate facility of Rs. 1,725 milion (2010: Rs. 975 milion).
The finances camed mark-up ranging between 14.74 to 15.87 (2010: 14.18 1o 15.79) percent payvable

quarterty.
Mote 2011 2010
Rupees Rupeeas
PROMISION FOR MARKET COMMITTEE FEE
Provision for market commities foa 26.1 42,777 959 &2, 700,000

Durirg the yaar 1998-2000, the Market Committes filed a law suit for the recovery of market commities fee
before the Senior Chil Judge Tando Allalhyvar, The Compary contested the kaw sul on the ground that Market
Committes was nol lawfully constituled. The Senior Chil Judge Tando Allshyar, however, passed a decree
against the Company on March 12, 2003 amounting 1o Rs. £43.7 million plus fee amounting to As. 985
million redating to the yvears upto 2003-2004. Subsequenth: the Government of Sindh withdres the levy of
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Market Committes for crushing season of 2004-2005. Tha Company filsd an appeal against the aforesaid
order of Senior Civil Judge Tando Allahyar with the District Judge, Hyderabad and the same was dismissed
by the Dsinct Judge during 2006-2007, Consequently, in 2006-2007 the Company filed an appeal and
obtained a stay order from the Honorable High Court of Sindh. In the year 2008-2009, the Honorable High
Court of Sinch made a decsion in this respect and determinex] the Company's liabdity in the sum of Rs.
32.70 million uplo the month of Juna 2008, The Company fled an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the amount of liabiity determined by the High Court of Sindh which is pending bafore the Supreme
Court of Pakistan. During the previous year as a matter of prudence, the Gompany fully provided the amount
determined by the Honouraible High Court of Sindh and on the advice of its legal counsel decided not 1o
provide any further Eability on account of market committea fiee for the subsequent crushing seasons 2008-
2009 and 2009-2010. However, in the current year, as a matter of prudance, tha Company has made a
provigion for the crushing seacons 2008- 2004, 2008-2010 and 2010-2011 amounting 10 Rs. 100078 million.

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

272

27.3

27.4

275

27.6

277

CONTINGENCIES

Contribution demanded by SESSI Rs. 3.28 milion (2010: Rs. 3.28 milion) for the perod from July 1987 to
August 1980 which has been disputed by the Company. The case is pending before the Honorable High
Court of Sindh. The Company and its legal counsel are hopehul of the fevourable outcome of the case and
hance, no provision has been made aganst the above damand in these financial statemants,

DGODP risk purchasa claim As. 38.58 million (2010 As. 38.58 million) which is disputed by the Company on
the ground that the goods were already dalivered and the DGDP had no nght to make the risk purchase
claim and that the DGDP who failed 1o iR the goods was responsibie for the breach of the contract. The
Company has fled a counter daim of Bs. 25.81 million (2010: Rs. 25.81 million) against the said breach of
coniract. The cases are pending before the Honorable Supreme Count of Pakistan - Rawalpindg bench and
tha Honorable Lahore High Court, Rawaipindi Bench. The management and legal counsal of the Company
are confidant that no kability will anise in respect of the rsk purchase claim, and hence nNo provision has been
mada for the same in thesa financial statements,

The Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh which has granted a slay 1o
the Compary against the onder of Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, Karachi upholding
allegation of non payment of sales 1ax on advances efc., amounting to Rs. 11,087,081/ (2000
Fs. 11,087.051/-). Based on the facts and advise of the legal achvisor, the managemen! is confident of a
favorable outcome and hence no prosvision s required 10 be made in these financial sialements.

The Compary has also fied an appeal bafore Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appelate Tnbunal, Karachi,
which is panding for hearing, against the crder of 1he Deputy Collecior, Colaciorate of Customs, Excse and
Sakes Tax (Adwdication), Hyderabad 1o pay off alleged demand of Rs. 10,746,624/~ 2010 Rs. 10,746,624/
alongaith additional tax and penalty. Based on the advise of the legal advisor, the management B confident
of a favourabke oulcome and hence No provision s regquined 10 be made in these financial stalements.

Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authodty had demanded a fee payment at the rate of 0.1 percem
of ex-factory price for the year 2008-08 amounting o Fs. 2.2 milkon. The Company is of the vew that
demand nolifications 5o ralsed ara without amy lawful authonity under the PSOCA Act-V1 of 1996 and are in
violation of the constitution, Based on the advise of the legal advizor, the management is. confident that it
would not ba liable o pay the said marking fee and hance nNo provision is requined to e made n these
financial slalemants.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments in respect of capial expenditure a3 on Saptember 30, 2011 amounted (o Bs, 246,130 milon
(2010: As. 65.873 milkon),

Commitments in respect of operating lease renfals for farms as on September 30, 2011 amounted 1o
Rs. B6.175 millon (2010: Rs. 7.84 mllion),
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Mote
28, TURNOVER

29. COST OF SALES

Manufactured sugar:
Cost of sugarcane consurmed
fincluding procurement and other expenses)
Markat committes fea
Road cess on sugarcane
Salanes, wages and other benafits 291
Stores and spare parls consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Fuel, shectricity and water charpes
Vehicle running and maintenance expenses
INGurance
Depraciation LR R
Diher overhoads

Opaning stock of work-in-process
Closing stock of work-in-process
Cost of goods manufaciured

Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods

2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
4,226,267 604 3,815.814,244

330,102 606 203,203,402
30,925,842 B8.662.877
4,5096,206,142 4,025,770.523
4,521,188, 762 3174120276
10,077,959 =
3,056,458 4172,713
113,665,847 88,888,182
175,606,159 108,058,749
40,478,478 26,353,501
17,341,151 20,531,928
5,388,014 3,264,523
6,182,835 4,682,534
65,625,420 40,782,082
17,764,995 B,211,542
4,978,375,928 3.475,106,120
3,207,539 1,677,023
(3,763,964) 3,207.5308)
1,530.516)
4,977 819,503 3,477,575,604
250,629,437 139,619,721
1,454,806,439) {250,629,437)
1,204,177,002) {111,009,716)
3,773.642,501 3,366,565, 888

29.1 This includes contrbution o provident fund of Rs, 2 465,375/ (2010: As. 2,054,666/-) and gratuily fund of

Rs 1,087,678/ (2010: Rs. 1,656,070/-).

Mote
30. DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Sakanes, wages and other benafits 301
Insurance
Stacking and loading
Selling expenses

2011 2010
Rupees Rupees
1,366,065 1,183,470
18,800 10,335
3,603,537 3,906,002
155,450 342975
5,163,852 5442,782

30.1 This includes contribution 1o provident fund of Bs. 51,561/~ (201 1: Rs. 38,155/
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Mate 2011 2010
Rupaes Rupeas
31.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salanes and other benefits A 58,470,744 47,726,563
Rer, rates and taxes 1,652,505 1.575,463
Electricity, lelephone, fax and postage 4,922 066 4,539,208
Printing and stationery 1,693,076 1,635,535
Trenealing and oormeyance 3,181,068 4,300,185
Wehicle running and maintenance expenses G.089,925 4,504,815
Ao remunamtion 3.2 1,180,500 1,137,650
Legal and professional 2,427 970 2,111,631
Fees and subscrplion 585,002 a2 574
Irsvrance 176,720 191,585
Repairs and maintenances 3,083,434 2883913
Adeertising 813,645 599,055
Donations 3.3 8,662,520 1,530,030
Depreciation 51.1 9.942.512 7,119,451
Orher expenses 148,829 565,101

31.1 This includes contribution to provident fund of Rs. 1,335,088/- (2010: Rs. 1,144,321/-).

201 2010
Rupees Rupess
1.2 Audbors® remuneraticn
Statutory aidit
Emst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
Statutory aud fee 660,000 600,000
Review of half vearly financial slatements and
compliance with Code of Corporate Govwernance 300,000 305,000
Other services 50,000 30,000
Out of pockel expenses 70,500 70,650
1,080,500 1,005,650
Cost audi
Haroon Zakaria & Co.
Cost audil fea 100,000 125,000
Ot of pocket expenses = ¥ 000
1,180,500 1,137,650

31.3 Includes Rs.8,000,000/- (2010: Rs, Wi paid to Hasham Foundation which is a project of Hasham Group.
hir. Mohammed Kasim Hasham, Mr Mohammed Ebrahim Hasham, b Mohammed Hussain Hasham,
Mr. Khurram Kasim and Mr. Ahmed Ebrahim Hasham am trustees of the said Foundation, Mo olher
directors or their spouses have amy interest in any donee’s fund to which donation was made.
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Workers' Weltare Fund

Provision for impaimment on short-tenm investments
Zakat

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Profit on bank deposits

Gam on disposal of fixed assels

Scrap sales

Rantal incomsa

Mt farm incomes

Realized gain on disposal of short term investments
Ditviclend income

FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up one
Long-term financing

Subordinated loans - from refated parties

Shor-term bomowings
Leasa financo

Bank charges

TAXATION

Currant
Pricar yesr

Deterred

kate

35.1

2011 2010

Rupess Rupees
22149673 17,265,025
4347042 6,906,010
16,965,220 9,123,647
82 500 82,500
A3, 5add 444 33 377,182
5,548,727 1,346,585
412,552 113731
17,845,997 2,968,980
215,629 238,618
32,154,120 24 553,623
14177188 9,252 266
9,004,872 3,579,237
80,255,085 F0.076,640
48,382 141 18,128,118
- 212 626
B0.263 954 51,440,681
3,702,881 2 666,850
132, 72448 334
1,408,185 1,352,149
133,757,171 73,800,473
45,595 461 A8 ST 934
6,239 841 11,947 654

a1 . 705,
41 Ba2 437 619
3,640,144 79,143,207

The Company i3 subject 1o Mirmum tax under section 113 of tha Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore
relationship batween INcome tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented for the curmant year.

Income 1ax assessmants ol the Company have been complated upto the tax year 2010 (accounting year

anded Seplember 30, 2005).
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36, BASIC AND DILUTED EARNING FER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Compary, which is based on:

Eamings after taxation attributabile to ondinary
shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Eamings per share - after tax

37.  'WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

fincreasa)/decraase in current assets
Biclogical assels
Stores and spara parts
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short-lenm prepayments
Other recetvables

Increase / (decreasa) in current labilties

Trade and other payables
Sales tax payable

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

2011 2010
322 855,580 241,886,265
iRestated)
17,204,682 17,204,682
(Restated)
18,67 13.90
2011 2010
Rupees Rupeas
(29,5968,0358) (4, 5559,000)
(20,833, 747) 3,248,808
(1.204,733,427) {112,540,232)
85,877.826 21,540,437
93,457 596 (42,784,608
{12,287 ,536) (1,068.233)
80,806 368,166
{1,128,396,020) {135, 704,753
1.0831,254 655 204,905 576
2,770,429 (10,819,802
1.0634,025,084 284,075,774
ﬁj.ﬁ?ﬂ.m . 148,371,021

Redated parties of the Compary comprse of Pakistan Molasses Compary (Private) Lirfled, Mogul Tobacoo
Company (Privale) Limited, Unicol Limited, Adamjes insurance Company Limited. Transaclions with related
parties, other than remuneration and benefits 1o directors and key management perscnng under the terms
of thesr employment, as deciosaed in nole 40, are as follows:

Relationships - Commoen directorship
Sales
Expenses shared
Insurance prermiLem
Donaticns pasd
Recespt of subordinated loan
Repayment of subordinated loan
Mark-up on subordinated kan

Fetirement benafit plans
Priowschant fund contrbuton

2011 2010
Rupees Rupees

377,215,218 214,360,988
308,693 287 348
8,535,097 5,356,043

8,000,000 -
. 24,000,000
24,000,000
212,626
3,852,028 3,238,146
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Balances outstanding with related parties have been disclosed in the respective notes 1o the finandcial
slaterments.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Raled capacity Capacity ufilisation
M. Tons Days M. Tons Days
Season 2010-2011 7000 TCD 160 5186 TCD 156
Season 2009-2010 7000 TCD 160 2472 TCD 122

The short fall in crushing is due to shortage of raw material i.e. sugarcane.
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DNRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount, charged in the inancial stalements for the year are as follows:

e &g
Croed Cornged
Exeaativg Exiaytag
Ot Drgiors  Emeiuteets Tioal Dl [ extins. Exscotreis Teasl
........................................................................... TR, 150 65000000 04 8200080000004 R AR £ 28 20428408404 8

Foey 1700 A0 - ialas] 6000 Mo b o)
g e e aion 2L 00 AF000 S5SETES  ITHIGEN 2RO 32D BESSD 158000
Fiptepraird Darglly B W00 1meo .06 B SRATE LXK WA

Pergmtes o oo Danglts ZEE0000  4MAS00 0BS5S  16SBRBED  AS1B000  JSITS00 AASEXD 4A407A00
BATI0D QTSRO0 TASAETE  IRDMA4 SN0 TAHITATE  EEES 39,1350

g ol piesors i & L) 17 1 5 12 LI

In addition, the chied executive officer and executive direciors are provided with free use of the Company
maintained cars, in accomdanca with their terms of serdice,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks ansing from the Company's financial instruments are credit sk, liquidity risk, interast rate nsk
and equity price risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks

Credit righk

Credit risk is the risk which anses with the possibdity thal one party 10 a financial instrument will fal 10
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, The Company attermpits to control
credit risk by monitoning credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually
assessing the crediworhiness of counterparties.,

Concentrations of credit risk ansa when a number of counlerparties are engaged in similar business acthities
¢r have simiar economic features that would cause their ability 1o meet contractual obligations (o be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on long-term deposits, trade debls, long 1emm invesiments, loans
and advances, frade deposils, other receivables, short term investments and bank balances. The Company
seeks 10 minimize the credit sk exposure through having exposures only 10 customens considered credit
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wiorlby and oblaining securities where applicable. The maxirmum exposune 10 credil sk at the repoding date
L%

Long-term deposits
Trade debis

Larg term imestrment
Loans and Advances
Trade Deposits

Ciher recehvables
Shorl tenm Investments
Bank balanoes

Cuality of financial assels

Carrying Values
2011 2010

Rupees Rupeeas
B,545,735 3,592 400
4,683,163 90,560,989
216,718,336 176,077,471
31,029.412 84,487 408
148,500 188,500
472171 263,077
162,888,880 81,480,776
11,850,496 113,694,400
436,435,702 561,045,021

The cridit quality of fimancsal assels can be assessed by reference 1o exiernal credit ratings or the hestonical
information about counter party default rales as shown below:

Camying Values
2011 2010
41.1.1Trade dabts i .
Cusiomers with no delaults in the past one year 4,683,163 20,560,980
Customens wilh some detaulls i past one year
which have bean fully recoverad
Cusiomers wilh defaulls in past one year
4,683,163 80,560,980
41.1.2Imesiments
Available for sale Fvastments
Wirih exbarmal credii mating
Iﬁl1 2.535‘.42? N
Al 91,650,262 8,482,650
A-2 - 2,553,048
Without extermal credit rating 105,449,200 77,145,078
159,688,889 BB,180.776
Hedd-to-maturity imvesiments
With extermal cradit rating
Al+ 3,300,000 3,300,000
41.1.3 Bank balances
With external credit rating
Al 281,957 156,062
Al+ 11,568,539 113,527 520
AL 10,805

1,850,456

113,684,200
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Licyuichity rigik

Licuidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances and by keeping committad credit lines. The tabla below summarnses the maturity profile of the
Company™s iinancial iabiltes al the following reporing dates:

Yool ey 30 Bapaemoad 20111 L tham 3 Jm iz 15
Oy Chamand i) TonTS s =5 yiirs Totnl
Ligmgr b Sngrcang] - sacunad y bR s Re P S o A R RS B e : LT R
Lot s SIS Sy b0 Anare mese : 2260000 4063 580 14 e Eed - Al <
e 5o i Coyaiiied TATLEE  1.5PSBA5.000 19437000 LA | 1000, 724,
Acir il markl) f LT D6 4 . J EaT

Yiear orciad 30 Saptesber 2010 L= e 3 Am 12 TS
O dermand mones fhanits isars » 5 yairs Toaal
Liwng- i Ardcang - Scunad 50,000,000 No000 205 R0 - 24N TEG GG
Linoitind el iads sulpec 10 B indsa - 2,060 518 4 1 588 18221 811 - A5
et B oty iy REEE 558081027 B, 148 145843 - ST S0 o
Al Sdrn - BOLACE. Be - - - HLAE A
e = hooiwings sicured - 22000978 - - 2000 AT
L 150 E:I.ﬁ.ﬂ-ﬂ 4-1?:5-&11 Fr=REIA ] 5 EE DA ST
Interest ratie fsk

Imerest rale rsk is the sk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate
because of changes in market inerest rates. The Company™s exposure to the nsk of changes in market
interest rales redates 1o the Compary's bong-tam debt obligations, short-term borrowings, subordinated
loans and lease obiigations with fioating interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis:

Thi foleaang figures demonstrate 1he senstivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all
oiher varables held constant, of 1he Company's profit befora tax:

Increass / decrease Effect on profit

o i basis points balore tax
KIBOR +100 11.32&%1
mmﬂ '1m 1| p'q
2010

KIBOR +100 ;?Ed.%t
KIBOR -100 7244
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Equity price risk

The Company”s kstad aquity securities are susceplible to markel price sk ansing from uncertaintes abolt
future values of investment securities, The Company manages the equity prce sk through diversification
and placing mits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted
io the Company’s senior managamant on a regular basis, Tha Comparny's Board of Directors reviews and
approves all ecuity instrument decisions.

At thie balance shesl date, the exposune (o listed equity securities held as Available for sale was Rs, 159,689
ilion,

A [decrease) / increase of 10% on the stock exchange index would have an impact of approximately
Fs.15.9689 million on the equity of the Company, depending on whether or not the {decrease) / increase is

Capital risk management

The primary cbjective of the Company's capital managemeant s 1o maintain healihy capital ratios, strong
credit rating and optimal capital structunes in order 1o ensure ample avalability of finance for its exasting and
potential nvestment projects, 1o maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.

Thie Company manages i1s capital strectiure and makes adustment o i, in ight of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structune, the Compary may adust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders. returmn capial to shareholders or issue new shares.

Thie Company monfors capral using a geaning ratio, which s net debt dividad by total capital plus net debt.
MNet debt is calculatled as total kpans and bomowings including any finance cost thereon, trade and other
payabies, kess cash and bark balances and imvestiments. Capital signifies equity as shown in the balance
sheat plus net debt.

The gearing ratios as al Saptember 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010

Shiorl tenm bormowings - securd . 209,908 978
Long tarmn financng 303,750,000 243,750,000
Trade and olher payables 606,527, 976
Accrued rmank-up 10,806,928
Liahilitizs against asse! subjact to finance base 23,586,113
Total debt 914,679,995
Less: Cash and bank balances {11,943,333) {113,747,245)

Shaort term investments (162,088,889) (91,480,776
M cabt 1,792,981,100 709,451,974
Share capital 172,946,820 142,531,250
FRaeseres 610,801,757 370,483,100
Equity 782838577 522 414 359
Capital 2,585 819,677 1,231,8566,333

Gearing ratio 69% S68%



Notes to the Financial Statements

41,5

42,

nded September 30, 2011

The Company finances its investment portfolio hrough equity, bomowings and management of s working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropeiate mix between vanous sourcas of finance to minimisa risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Far wvalue i the amount for which an assst could be exchanged, or a liabiity settled, betwesn
knowiedgeabils wiling parties in an anm's length transaction.

The Compary has available for sale invesiments which are revalued at the market prices pravaiing on the
balance sheel dale, The estimated fair valse of all other inancal assels and Eabilities & considersd not
significantly differant from book value.

DATE OF AUTHOREZATION FOR 1SSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on Decamber 16, 2011 by the Board of Dreclors of
the Cormparry.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Beard of Directors in their board mesting held on December 16, 2011 has recommended a final cash
dividend of Re, 0.75 per share 7.5% (2010; Re. 1/- per share 10%) and issue of bonus shares in the
propartion of ten (10) ordinary shares for every hundred {100} ordinary shares held 10% (2010: ten (10
ordinary shares for every hundred (100) ordinary shares held 10%) for the year ended Seplernber 30, 2011,
The approval of the members for the proposed final cash dividend and the proposed bonus issue will be
cbiained at the Annual General Meeling of the Company to be held on January 31, 2012, The financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2011 do not include 1he affect of the final cash dvidend and
proposed bonus issue which will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending September
30, 2002,

GEMERAL

Amounts have been rounded off 10 the nearest rupes uniess othersise stated,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR



Pattern of Shareholding

as at sepltembear 30, 20N

Mumber of Shareholdings Tolal Number
Shareholders From To of Shares Held

1134 1 - 100 18,896

240 101 - SO0 56,449

72 51 - 1000 54,335

7T 1001 - SO00 201,433

19 S0 - 10000 145,683

14 10001 s 15000 168,168

6 15001 . 20000 108,447

G 20001 - 25000 137,220

“ 25001 - 30000 108,937

1 20001 - 35000 34,113

4 35001 . 40000 141,489

1 50001 - 55000 52,831

1 55001 - 60000 58,856

1 B0001 - 65000 61,831

1 BE0 - 70000 67,783

i SO0 - 5000 90,382

1 Sa00 - 100000 98,632

1 100001 - 105000 101,801

1 125001 = 130000 128,912

1 145001 - 150000 147,000

1 150001 . 155000 152,160

1 165001 - 170000 165,500

1 170004 - 175000 174,377

1 175001 - 180000 175,629

1 180001 - 185000 183,597

1 215001 - 220000 215,248

1 230001 - 235000 231,394

1 275001 - 280000 277 081

1 280001 - 285000 282,123

1 335001 - 40000 336,095

1 SBO00M - 585000 580,399

2 1825001 - 1830000 3,654.817

1 2800001 - 2805000 2,801,359

1 3035001 - 3040000 3,038,899

1 3040001 - 3045000 3,041,008

1602 17,204,682
Shareholder’s Category Mumber of Mumber of Percentage of

Shareholders  Shares Held Paid-up Capital

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 2 1,857 0.01%

INDMIDLUALS 1589 16,847,306 Gr.a1%

INSURANCE COMPANY 2 174,397 1.01%

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 6 260,573 1.51%

TRUST FUND 2 9,962 0.06%

INVESTMENT COMPANY 1 S&7 0.00%

1602 17,204,682 100.00%




Additional Information

Categories MNumber of Shares held Percentage
Shareholders
a) Assocated Undertaking and related parties Mane = 0.00
b} MIT and ICP
Mational Bank of Pakistan Mane -
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 5ar 0.00
¢} Direclors / CEQ and their spowse and minor childran
Mr. Mohammed Kasim Hasham 1 3,041,008 17.58
Mr. Moharmmed Ebeahim Hasharm 1 2,801,359 16.20
Mr. Mohammed Hussain Hasham 1 3,038,890 17.57
Mr. Khurram Kasim 1 1,825,530 10.56
Mr. Ahmed Ebrahirm Hasham 1 1,829,087 10.58
Mr. Muharmmad Ighal 1 4,394 0.03
Mr. Farooq Hassan 1 3,025 0.02
Mrs. Kuksoom Kasim 1 183,587 1.06
Mrs. Khurshesd Ebrahim 1 277,081 1.680
Mrs. Marurm Hussain 1 175,520 1.01
d} Execulives Maora = 0.00
8 Public Sactor Companies and Comarations G 260,573 1.51
fi Bank, DFis, NBFls, Insurance Companies, Mudarbas & Mutual Funds
MCE Bank Limited 1 15 0.00
Habity Bank Lmited 1 1,742 0.01
EFU General Insurance Limited 1 20 0.00
State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan 1 174,377 1.01
Ivvestrment Corporation of Pakistan 1 L&Y 0.00
gl Shareholders holding 10% or more woling interest
hir. Mohammed Kasim Hasham 1 3.041,008 17.58
r. Moharmmed Ebrahim Hasham 1 2,801,359 16.20
Mr. Mohammed Hussain Hasham 1 3,038,895 17.67
r. Khurram Kasim 1 1,825,530 10.56
kr. Ahmad Ebrahim Hasham 1 1.829,087 10.58



Proxy Form

46th Annual General Meeting

|/ Wa
of
being member of Mehran Sugar Mills Limnited,
holding ordinary shares heraby appoint
iof or falng
hirm s
ol whio isfare akso menben(s) of Mehran Sugar Mills Limited as mmy J our peasy in my / our

absonce 1o attend and vole for ma / us and on my / our behall at the 481h Annual General Mesting of tha
Company 10 be held on January 31, 2012 at 1700 PST and at any adyoumment thereal.

As witness my our hand seal this day of 2012
Sig s Please afthx
: thei sl nature Five Rupees
Sigred by &aid Shareholders Revenue
e i Stamp
Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company Adamies House, Bth Floor, 11 Chundrigar Road, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the
tirme fixed for hodding the Annual General Meeting.

2. Mo person shall act as proxy unless he himsell is a member of the Company, except that a
corporation may appoint a person who B not a8 memiber,

3. H a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy ane deposited by a
member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered imealid,

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities.
In acldition to 1he above, the following requirements have 10 ba mat:

i The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC numbers shall be
mentianed on the Fomm

il Attested copées of CHIC or the passpor of the beneficial owners and the prosy shall be fumished with
the Proogy Form

i) The Froxy shall produce hisher arginal CNIC or onginal passpart at the time of the meaeling,

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of altormey with specimen
signature shall be submitted junless it has been provided earier) along with Proxy Form (o the Company.,
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Adamijes House, Bth Floor,

1Ll Chundrigesr Road,
Farachi-74000, Pakisian.

Ted: +02-21 3241 7131 (4 Linas)
Feog +592-21 3241 6477

E-mail: mama@mediransugar.com
Wishaite: wisrs mahranaugar, oom





